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January 3, 2008

OVERNIGHT DELIVERY

Ms. Mary Casio

Securities and Exchange Commission
Division of Corporation Finance

Office of International Corporate Finance
100 F Street, N.E., Mail Stop 3628 CF/OICF
Washington, D.C. 20549

DLA Piper US LLP

203 North LaSalle Street, Suite 1900
Chicago, lllincis 60601-1263
www.dlapiper.com

Hal M. Brown
hal.brewn@dlapiper.com
T 312.368.4012

F 312.630.5399

0t 3571

Re: Application for Exemption Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) by IAWS GROUP, PLC

Dear Ms. Casio:

Pursuant to our telephone conversation this afternoon, | am enclosing a copy of the entire Annual Report
for the year ended July 31, 2007, including financial statements for the year then ended, that was sent by

IAWS to its shareholders on or about November 2, 2007.

if we can provide anything with respect to the application of IAWS, please feel free to call me.

Thank you for your assistance in this matter.
Very truly yours,

DLA Piper US LLP

LN

Hal M. Brown

HMB:gh
Enclosures

CHGO1130784597 1
Serving clients globally
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“IAWS Group, pic has had an excellent year with strong underlying growth across
the entire business. This has been a transformational year for the Group with
our largest ever acquisition, that of Otis Spunkmeyer in the US, followed by the
successful Initial Public Offering ("IPO") of Origin Enterprises plc (“Crigin®) in
June. We also successfully placed US$450m of long term debt with an average
maturity of 9.2 years. The combination of the long term debt placing together
with the release of €256m in cash from Qrigin has considerably strengthened
the Group's financial position.

“The rapid rise in grain and food costs augurs well for the future growth of Origin.
The same circumnstances will be challenging for all food companies coping with
food inflation at unprecedented levels. Our Lifestyle Foods business proposition
to consumers conveys substantial benefits over cost and we remain confident
that our business model will continue to generate growth.”

Owen Killian, Chief Executive Officer
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Financial highlights

2007 2006 Change
____§000 <00 _
Group revenue 1,907,619 1,657,305 22.5%
Group operating profit* 146,448 111,815 31.0%
Share of associates and Jva 26,656 25,653 3.9%
Operating profit incl. associates and JV* 173,104 137,468 25.9%
Pre tax profits* 143,005 123,539 15.8%
Diluted earnings per share* {cent) 94,17 81.60 156.4%
Dividend per share {cent) 15.31 13,49 13.5%
Free cash excluding disposals 136,589 100,651 35.7%
EPS growtn
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Diluted earnings per share {cent)” ** 9417 81.60 71.89 63.41 54.12
Yeoar-on-year growth 15% 14% 13% 17% 18%
- £
Casn ‘ow
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
€000 €000 €000 €000  €'000
Frae cash excluding disposals 136,589 100,651 83,510 80,633 73,532
Acquisition / development expenditure 548,868 111,006 158,113 79,8927 82,418
Group revenus (€m)
D Total operating profit (€m)* **
1.£38 Free cash flow (pre disposal €m)
EPS (cent}*
1,557 F Group operating margin (%)
1408 ’
1?3:1 1,276 1,231
§
b 1375
1366 | - ] 12041
o 100./ . 1056 92,6
B s15 A =0 80.6 |
¢ @ ne g -
e & et 634 541
7.10 B 120 . 2 760 "'" 660 /.60
" o ‘ I l:‘:_ i ',, 7‘ '
o | o o [ [a— -
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

* Pra intangible amortisation and exceptional items.
A Net of interest and tax.

** 2003 to 2005 are recalculated for IFRS &t the same growth rates as UK GAAP
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Denis Lucey, Chairman

The 2007 financial year has been
ore of significant development for
1AWS Group, pic. Group revenue
grew by 22.5 per cent to €1.9bn
and group cperating profit® 31.0

per cent to €146.4m, while pre tax
profits* increased by 15.8 per cent

to €143.0m. Adjusted fully diluted
earnings per share™ graw by 15.4 per
cent year-on-year to 94,17 cent.

In October 2006, IAWS announced its
intention to create Origin Enterprises
ple (“Origin”) to dsvelop a specialist
focus around the original core Agri
and non Lifestyle Foods businesses

of the Group. Origin subsequently
completed an Initial Public Offering
{“IPO" of approximately 25 per cent of
its share capital in June 2007. Origin
continues o form an important part of
the activities and interests of the Group.

On behalf of the Board of IAWS Group,
plc we congratulate Tom O’Mahony
(Origin CEQ} and his team on their
successful IPO and look forward to
working with them to maximise the
potential of Origin into the future.

The Origin businesses performed well
during the year with revenus increasing
by 8.9 per cent 1o €889.4m while
operating profits” were up by 9.9

per cent at €38.1m.

In Novernber 2008, the Group made its
largest acquisition with the purchase
of Otis Spunkmeyer. Ctis Spunkmeyer
is a lsading brand in the sweet baked
goods market in the US, directly
servicing 60,000 customers across the
country. The business is an excellent
strategic fit for |AWS and has made

a very strong contribution in the ning
months since acquisition.

W A L VAN J,,\- 3
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Qverall, the Food business performed
very well, increasing revenue by 37.5
per cent to over €1bn. Cperating profit*
from the Lifestyle Foods business was
€108.3m compared to €77.1m in
2008, an increase of 40.4 per cent.

During the year, the Group commenced
work on a new purpose huilt Centre

of Excellence in Grangecastie, County
Dubilin, which is designed to help

fuel the continued growth of IAWS'
Irish and international Litestyle Foods
business. This €200m project is
progressing on schedule with an
expected completion date towards

the end ot the 2008 calendar year.

2007 saw another strong contribution
from the Group's associates and joint
venture amounting to €26.7m in the
year. This ropresents an increase of
3.9 per cent over 20086,



Board changes

On 27 July 2007, Dr. Patrick Wall
announced his retiremsnt from the
Board. We would like to thank Patrick
for his considerable contribution during
a period of important development

for IAWS,

Mr. Philip Lynch, Mr. David Martin and
Mr. Tom O'Mahony have announced
their intentions to retire from the Board
at the 2007 AGM, without seeking
re-glection,

On behalt of the Board, | would like

to thank Philip for his leadership and
coniribution as CEO, Chairman and
Board member. Similarly, | thank David
for his very significant contribution as
Group Finance Director and Board
member.

Tom O'Mahony is stepping down from
the Board to focus on his new role as
Chief Executiva of Origin.

Hugo Kane was appointed Chief
Cperations Officer during the year
which is timely and appropriate given
the future food focus of the Group.

Management and staff

IAWS' management and staff are the
key drivers of the sustained success

of the Group. On behalf of the Board,

{ would like to acknowledge their talent,
hard work and commitment which has
continued to drive the growth of the
business in this exceptional year for
IAWS. | would also like to congratulate
Owen Killian, CEQ, tor his strategic
vision and strong leadership.

Following the strategic repositioning
of Qrigin and the acquisition of Otis
Spunkmeyer in the US, the Group has
improved focus and better product
and geographic diversification. As a
result, | believe IAWS Group, plc is
well positicned to deliver sustainable
growth.

Denis Lucey
Chairman

24 September 2007

* EPS, pre tax and cperating profit are stated

here before intangible amortisation and
exceptional iterns.
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Owen Killian, Chief Executive Officer

The Group's record of consistent
double-digit growth was maintained in a
transformational year. There was strong
underlying growth in the core Lifestyla
Foods business and substantial scale
was achieved in the North American
business. The Group successfully
completed its largest ever acquisition,
Otis Spunkmaeyer, which made an
excellent contribution to the Group inits
first nine months. Origin Enterprises was
listed on the IEX / AIM stock markets
raising €100m of development capital
to fund future growth.

Highlights of the year included:

Strong underlying growth
in Lifestyle Foods

Substantial scale achieved
in North American market

The Group’s largest aever acquisition
- Otis Spunkmeyer

US$450m long term debt placing

*  Successful Origin IPO raises €100m
development capital

* €256m in cash released from Origin
to IAWS

& New undertying growth dynamic
for Crigin

* Cash acquisition spend of €459,9m
and capex of €89.0m

* Commenced development of
innovative Eurcpean facility

* Free cash flow grows 36 per cent
to €136.6m

+ Year-end net debt to EBITDA,
excluding Origin, ratio 2.4 times.

The Group is now reporting in three
segments, Food North America, Food
Europe and Origin. This segmental
analysis reflects the changed profile of
the Group and the comparative period
has been restated accordingly.

—=eview Ot
OUSINESS
operations

We are differentiated by the commitment,

passion and professionalism of our

people who are dedicated to serving our
customers in the exciting and dynamic

market niches where we operate.

Outlook

The Group has made substantial
investment in the period and the
business is now well positioned in

all its markets. Food inflation is now

a reality and a challenge for all food
companies operating in this area. We
rermain confident that our business
model will continue to deliver benefits
to our customers and that we are well
ptaced to achieve future growth.

@,._ HoL

Owen Killian
Chief Exacutive Officer

24 September 2007




Food brands

Food Europe

Pierres

Pierme’s is en established market leading brand
providing a hot food solution to the retall and
toodsarvice markets in Irelend, Pierme's supplies
a versatile range of products for all channels and

eating occasions.

Focd North Amenca

(uisine de France
SEID - ST
Cuisine de France offers the consumer traditional
French breads, pastries and also a wide range
of continental-style breads, confectionery ancd
hat savoury items, Cuisine de France provides a
complete bake-off selution primarity to the retail
industry, as well es staff treining and category
management to enable the timely delivery of
reacy-to-bake products.

Carroll Cuisine is one of the teading suppliers of
chilled hams, sandwich filings, reacy meals and
specialty products to both the foodservice and
retail markets in Iratand.

¢ysSpunkmegs,

Otis Spunkmeyer is a leading, pramium fresh
baked goods brand in its US market categories.
An iconic brand, it has strong recognition and
awarenass across a national customer basa in
the foodservice and retail channals,

Defice de France suppkes high quality continental
breads, viennoiserie, savoury and confectionery
products, including hospitality goods, primarily
to the foodservice and catering industry. The
business offars premium solstions tailorad to
meat future customer gnd consumer naeds. It
is the UK's lgading provider of inngvative and
authentic continental bakery products to the
toodservice trede.

Coup de Pates is the principal brand of Groupe
Hubert, a leading developer and distributor
of bakery preducts to the bakery, craft and
foodsenice sectors in France. Groupa Hubert
offers its customers over 700 bread, viennoiserie.
patisseria, traiteur and reception products.

[BAKERY]

La Brea Bakery is widely credited as the pioneer
and leader of the artisan bread movement in
America, La Braa Bakery offers a wicke assortment
of rustic breads ranging from bagueties and loaves
to sandwich and dinner rofls.
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Food North America

2007 2006
€'000 €’000 Change
Revenue 369,131 138,072 _ _1654%
Operating profit™ 41,74 158 e 1 5116;

* before intangible amortisation and exceptional items

The Group has made substantial
investrment in developing its Lifestyle
Foods business in the North American
value-added bakery market through
acquisition and capital investment

in recent years. This has created an
operation of substantial scale with
iconic brands and a national reach

in the USA.

Category leadership has been
established in artisan breads and
sweet baked goods. The acquisition
of La Brea Bakery in 2001 enabled the
Group to grow category leadership
nationally in artisan bread while the

Otis Spunkmeyer acquisition gives
leadership in sweet baked goods.

Revenues in the US have now reached
an annualised $600m or 5 per cent of
the $12bn valus-added bakery market.
In the year under review, revenus

grew by 165.4 per cent to €369.1m,
including an excellent contribwtion from
QOtis Spunkmeyer of €220.1m for the
nine month period since acquisition,
Cperating profits” in North America
were up 151.0 per cent at €41.7m for
the year, Otis Spunkmeyer contributed a
strong €22.1m, making the acquisition
earnings accretive for the Group in its
first nine months,

Undertying growth in La Brea
Bakery continued at a high rate with

' revenues increasing by 15.2 per cent

to €149.0m while operating profits
rose by 17.8 per cent to €19.6m

after allowing for foreign currency
fluctuations. Inncvative product '
development based on lifestyle trends
and growing brand awareness continue
to drive superior growth in this dynamic
category. This, together with ongoing
capital investment in the Group's
unique bakery technology, enables La
Brea to maximise opportunities arising
from growth trends favourable to
freshly baked artisan bread,

The acqguisition of Otis Spunkmeyer
has been an excellent strategic fit,
giving the Group new lavels of reach
and scale in North America by virtue of

2002 wodoy [enuuy oid ‘dnosgy gy
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Food North America

its extensive US production capabilities
and distribution infrastructure. In North
America, the Lifestyle Foods business
has 2,368 employees, 53 direct

store delivery {('DSD") points and
seven manufacturing facilities.

These extensive infrastructure and
production capabilities service over
300 DSD routes and over 70,000
DSD customers.

Food North America locations

T~

Austin, TX

—_ —\
Nm%:u%ﬂﬁmmmwhmnm\"/—’-'

The Lifestyle Foods business has well
invested unique bakery assets which
provide a substantial platform for
growth. Tha Group now has strength
and depth in both the foodservice and
retail markets. Foodservice and retail
have an equal share of the US value-
added bakery market.

The ongaing investment programme in
North America has given the Group an

unrivalled route to market with category
leadership, superior branded concepts,
high quality products and unique
supply chain capabilities, Qur business
model conveys substantial benefits
over costs for customers which,
together with a proven management
team, positions the Group favourably
for further development and growth in
North America.

Y
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No. of Consumers 296m
Revenue $600m {pro forma)
Per Capita Revenue $2
Employees 2.368
Manufacturing 7

DSD Facilities 53

No. of BSD Routes > 300

DSD Customers > 70,000
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Food Europe

2007 2006

€000 €'000 Change
Revenue . 649125 _ . 601362 7.9%
Operating profit* 66,576 _ 60,494 10.1%

== —_——

* before intangible amortisation and exceptional items
»

Revenue in Food Europe which value-added bakery market. The Lifestyle
comprises the Lifastyle Foods Foods business has an extensive
businesses in Ireland, the UK and product range in the value-added
France, increased to €649.1m. bakery market. The Group estimates
This reflects revenue growth of 7.9 that the value-added bakery market
per cent {underlying revenue growth is growing at a rate of 4.5 per cent. In
of 7.3 per cent). Operating profit® Europe, the Lifestyle Foods business

in Food Europe increased by has 2,170 employess, 23 DSD points.
10.1 per cent to €66.6m. and three manufacturing facilities. This
The Group estimates that there is extensive infrastructure and production
a €90bn bakery market in Western capability services over 300 OSD routes

Europe within which there is 2 €13bn and over 50,000 DSD customers.

The Group has considerable strength
and depth in both the foodservice and
retail markets. In retail, the Lifestyle
Foods business offers value-added
concepts through focusing on space
profitability and differentiated offerings
that satisfy consumers’ continuous
demand for high quality, appealing and
convenient products. In foodservice,
the Group oifers solutions to our
customers to maximise their profitability
through focusing on menus, lower statf
costs, less baking time and minimal
product waste.
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Food Europe

in both retail and foodservice,
the Group offers an excellient
value proposition which provides
our customers with substantial
benefits over costs, The Lifestyle

Food Europe g? r’rf?
locations Fe z

Foods business continual focus and
investment in concept and product
development wili ensure our value
propasition to customers continues.
This focus and investment en concept
and product development is the
primary driver for growth.

To further underpin this growth the
Lifestyls Foods business is currently
constructing a new world class facility
at Grangecastle, Dublin, Ireland.
Construction work has commenced

on the site and €53m has been
invested in the year under raview.
The commissioning of the facility will
commence at the end of the current
financial year and the benefits from
this investment will be delivered from
2009 onwards.

The Group has invested in food
infrastructure, production capabilities
and a proven management team,
which wilt underpin its successful

business model and its future growth.
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Employees 2,170
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Origin Enterprises plc

2007 2006 |

€000 €000 Change f

Revenue 889,363 816,871 8.9% i
Operating profit” 38,127 34,690 9.9%

* before intangible amortisation and exceptional items

Origin revenue was up 8.9 per cent
at €889.4m (€816.9m). Operating
profit” increased by 9.9 per cent {0
€38.1m from €34.7m.

Origin established a €350m credit
tagility during the peried and raised
€100m of development capital through
the IPO of 25 per cent of its shares

on the IEX / AIM stock markets. This
development capital will facilitate the
investment by Origin in future growth,

Origin made a good contribution to the
Group during the period and shows a
potential new growth dynamic arising
from the renewed focus on the Origin
businesses. Crigin has a dedicated
management resource to unlock valus
from its development property sites.
Following the year-end, Origin acquired
a controlling interest in Odlums for
€35m and assumed €22m of debt,

(2~
Origin

ENTERPRISES PLC

=
&
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Financial review

Accounting policies

The 2007 Group financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRS) and their interpretations issued by the international
Accounting Standards Board (fASB) as adopted by the EU.

Following the IPQ of 25 per cent of Origin Enterprises plc,
and along with the creation of the Origin Long Term Incentive
Plan described in Note 8, IAWS now owns 71.4 per cent of
the Ordinary Share Capita! of Origin. The Group continues

to consclidate Origin as a subsidiary undertaking. A share of
the profits of Origin are attributable to minority interests and
presented as such in the Group income statement.

Analysis of results

Comprehensive commentary on Group revenue and operating
profit by segment for 2007 is included in the Review of business
operations on pages 6 to 15.

Key performance indicators

The Group considers the following measures to be important
indicators of the underlying performance of the business:

Adjusted fully diluted earnings per share (EPS)*

The Group reported an increase of 15.4 per cent in diluted
eamings per share” for the year ending 31 July 2007 to 84.17¢
compared to 81.60c¢ in the previous year. The adjusted profit
for the financial year was €120.6m compared with €103.7m
in 2006 - this was before an increased amortisation charge of
€15.8m compared 0 €7.1m in the previous year.

Revenue

Group revenue was 22.5 per cent higher at €1.9 bn. The Food
business achieved revenues of €1.0 bn, an increase of 37.5
per cent. Food North America reported revenue growth of
165.4 per cent. This includes nine months of revenue from Otis
Spunkmeyer (€220.1m} and an increase in underlying revenueas
at La Brea Bakery of 15.2 per cent. Food Europe delivered
underlying revenue growth of 7.3 per cent to €649.1m. Origin
reported revenue growth of 8.9 per cent to €889.4m.

Operating profit*

Group operating profit” increased by 31 per cent to €146.4m.
The operating profit* from the Food business was €108.3m
compared to €77.1m in 2006 — an increase of 40.4 per cent.
Origin delivered a good performance with operating profits”
of €38.1m which is 9.9 per cent higher than last year.

“EPS and operating profit are stated before intangible
amortisation and exceptional items

Reaturn on investment

Return on investment for the Group was 11.4 per cent in 2007
compared to 15.1 per cent in the previous year. The return on
investment in the Lifestyle Foods business decreased from

14.2 per cent to 10.0 per cent due to the €53m investment

in the Grangecastle facility and a €460m investment in Otis
Spunkmeyer with only 9 months of contribution. The Onigin retum
on invesiment increased from 17.9 per cent to 18.8 per cent.

Free cash flow

During the year, due to strong underlying performance and
cash management, the Group’s free cash flow increased by
36 per cent to €136.6m.

Exceptional items

Total profit in the financial year includes an exceptional gain
of €22.7m (before tax). This consists, primarily, of a net gain
on dilution of Onigin of €44.2m offset by pension exit costs
and losses on the termination and disposal of operations of
€21.3m. Total profit for the financial year in 2006 included an
exceptional gain of €1.3m arising, primarily, from the disposal
of an excess property.

Dividends

The Board is recommending a final dividend of 7.80 cent per
ordinary share compared with 6.78 cent per ordinary share in
2008, an increase of 15.0 per cent. Together with the interim
dividend of 7.51 cent per ordinary share, this raises the total
dividend payment to 15.31 cent per ordinary share for the year,
an increase of 13.5 per cent. The final dividend will be paid on

1 Febnyary 2008 to shareholders registered at close of business
on 25 January 2008.

Treasury management

The Group operates a centralised Treasury function, which
manages the debt and currency risks of the Group. The
function’s activities include managing interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk and also ensuring the Group has sufficient
committed credit facilities available. The Group does not
engage in speculative trading. 1t is the Group's objective

to minimise exposure to both foreign cumency and interest
rate fluctuations arising from its trading acthvities,



Financial review continucd,

Funding and liquidity management

The Group finances its activities through a combination of
retained earnings and borrowings. Group net borrowings
increased from €216.5m in 2006 to €479.6m. During the
year, the Group completed a US$450m Guaranteed Senior
Note Private Placement with UK and US institutions which
has a weighted average tenor of 9.2 years. In addition to the
private placement, the Group also hag €950m syndicated
multi-currency bank loan facilities and overdraft facilities totalling
€96m to finance ongoing activities, capital expenditure and
investment, €350m of the above syndicated loan facliities are
held and guaranteed by Crigin, without recourse to tha wider
LAWS Group, plc.

Interest rate management

The Group's abjective continues to be to minimise the impact
of interest rate volatility on its interest costs, thereby protecting
profitability. The Group's objective is to maintain between 40
per cent and 70 per cent of overall Group average annual
barrowings at fixed rates of interest through the issuance

of fixed rate debt or use of interest rate swaps.

Foreign currency management

The Group’s main operations are in the Euro zone, North America
and the UK, while it also has an investment in Switzerland. As a
result, it is exposed to currency fluctuations, particularly sterling,
Canadian dollar, US doflar and the Swiss franc. The Group
manages the sffect of batance sheet translation exposure by
matching foreign currency investments with foreign currency
bomawings. The Group also has transactional cumency exposures
that arise from non-base currency activities and foreign currency
contracts are employed o reduce these currency exposures.

Pensions

During the year, following the formation of Grigin, a plan to
restructurs the main IAWS Group Defined Bensfit Pension
Scheme {the “Scheme”) was approved and was in the final
steps of implementation at the year end. On completion of the
plan, Crigin will replace |IAWS Group, pk: as principal employer,
at which stage the scheme will only include active members
employed by Ongin and the current deferred members of the
scheme. All non-Origin members will be transferred to a new
defined contribution scheme. In addition, during the year,

the Trustees purchased annuities for the Scheme’s existing
pensioners, thereby extinguishing the Group's liability in the
Scheme relating to those pensioners.

Taxation

The effective tax rate on ordinary activities for the year ended
31 July 2007 is broadly in line with prior year and reflects the
mix of prefits in the international jurisdictions in which the
Group operates.

Juih 19 5B

Patrick McEnitt
Chief Financiat Officer

24 September 2007
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10 vear financial information

Group income statements

Revenua

Operating profit before
amortisation of intangible
assets and exceptional kems

Amortisation of intangible assets
Exceptional ltems

Operating profit

Share of profit of associate
and joint venture
Finance costs, net

Profit betore tax

Incorme tax expense

Profit atter tax

Group balance sheets

Capital employed
Property, plant and equipment
Gooawil and intangibles
Ivestments in associates

and joint venturo
Investment properties
Net curent (liabiltiesyassats
Net non current liabilties

Financed as follows:

Total equity
Met debt

Financial highfights

Diuted samings per shara {cent)
Dividend per shara (cent)

Free cash (€'000)

Under IPRS Under Irsh GAAP

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €'000 €000 €'000 €000 €000
Restatad
1,907,619 1,557,305 1408,174 1276269 1.231,068 1214878 1,101573 982,186 649,782 857,490
146,448 114,815 98548  B4BAB  B5755 82530 69,105 60,219 46862 39,254
(15927)  (7.100)  {4.624)  (3300)  (1.363)  (1.807) {267) (301) (165) -
22,732 1,347 8,627 1,584 (945) 2,001 4,999 6,562 1,765 46
153,253 106062 102551 82932  B3.447 82724 73836 66480 48262 39,300
26,656 25653 21520 24490 9,965 4,202 4,162 1,732 2,495 2,522
(30,099) (13929 (12.300) {11.416) (13,548 (16,383) (33,155 (11,808) (8,158)  (8.509)
149,810 117,788 111,771 96006 79,865 70543 64843 56408 42508 33313
{26,337) (18657  (17.135) (17.738) (13621) (15163) (13,352) (11,489)  (8.947)  (7.766)
123473 99129 94836 78268 66,244 55381 51481 44914 33651 25547
356,493 308,388 287,578 247,135 234515 232258 232763 202210 172626 110,028

784,481 334024 336028 183531 149528 156,738 161,655 62960 19,883
189,005 159,221 116087 116991 102702 72513 35288 34986 37198 28,764

165,473 - . .

(39,920) (220427) [27.344) (38.488) {39.462) (34.681) (114,788 (32092) (41,897 3,469
(189.221)  (82,330) (108.125) (30,367) (24,241}  (23.022) (44,048} (33910) (25319)  (23.80%)
1,246,311 697,261 603,224 478,802 423,042 403806 270,860 234,154 162,485 118,457
766,728 480,736 383355 337392 267,944 219,381 171,848 129357 90024 62,249
479583 216525 219,868 141410 155088 184,425 889,212 104797 72,465 56,208
1,246,311  607.261 603,224 478807 423042 403806 270,860 234,154 162483 118,457
8417 81,60 71.89 62,10 53.00 4280 37.50 3140 25,80 20,40
1531 13.48 11.88 10.52 .03 7.88 6.83 5.94 5.17 4.48
126,589 100651 83510 80633 73,532 56442 61000 48000 45871 38,767



Directors

The Board of IAWS Group, plc consists of four executive
directors and nine non-executive directors.

(a) Chairman

Denis Lucey (70} was appointed Chairman of the Group on
31 August 2005. Prigr to that appointment he was Senior
Independent Director. He is a former Chief Executive of
Dairygold Co-operative Society Limited and is a director

of a number of unlisted companies.

(b} Executive directors

-

Owen Killian {54) was appointed Chief Executive Officer on
1 October 2003. He has held senior executive positions
with the Group since its flotation in 1988, having joined
IAWS in 1977, He is also a non-executive director and
Chairman of Origin Enterprises plc.

Patrick McEnitf FCMA MBA (39) is Chief Financial Officer.
He was appointed to the Board on 27 October 2004, He
has been with the Group since 1989, in several senior
positions, most recently Finance Director of the Lifestyle
Foods business. He is also a non-executive director of
Origin Enterprises plc.

Huge Kane (48} is Chief Operations Officer. He was
appointed to the Board on 1 September 2004, He joined
Cuisine de France in 1993 as Operations Director and
was appointed Managing Director in 2001. He became
Head of Food in 2004 and has been at the forefront of
the development of the Lifestyle Foods business. He was
appointed Chief Qperations Cfficer in Septerber 2007,

Tom O'Mahony (45) is Chief Executive Officer of Origin
Enterprises plc. He has held financial and operationat
management positions across the entire IAWS Group
since 1985,

(¢) Non-executive directors

Denis Bucldey (61) is Chairman of Kerry Group plc, Kerry
Co-operative Creameries Limited and a director of several
unlisted companies.

Beatrice Dardis M.A. (62) has a background in agri-
business. She is a director of several unlisted companies.

J. Brian Bavy {65) is Chairman of Davy Stockbrokers, He is
a former directer of the Irish Stock Exchange and of Amotts
plc. He is Deputy Chairman of the Executive Committes

of the National Matemity Hospital Holles Street and is a
director of several unlisted companies.

Noreen Hynes B.Comm. FCA {54) is Managing Director

of Aquarius Properties Abroad and previcusly held senicr
management positions with trish Distillers, Coal Distributors
and ICL. She ig a former member of the Council of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland.

Philip Lynch (51} is a former Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. He is Chief Executive of One51
Limited and Irish Agricultural Wholesale Society Limited
and is a director of CA&C Group pic, Coilte Teo and FBD
Holdings plc.

David Martin FCMA, (63) is a tormer executive director of the
Group. He is a director of The Irish Auditing And Accounting
Supervisory Authorily, the Dormant Accounts Board and a
number of unlisted companies.

William G. Murphy B.Comm. (62) is a director of Glanbia plc
and a former Deputy Managing Director of Glanbia. Heis a
director of a number of unlisted companies.

Paul N. Wilkinson M.A. {Oxon} (62} is Senior Independent
Director. He previously held senior management positions
with Unilever pic, Grand Metropolitan plc and RHM ple.
He is a director of Thorntons plc and a number of unlisted
companies.
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Directors’ report

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 July
2007.

Principal activity and business review

The Group's principal activities comprise the manufacture

and distribution of convenience food as wett as, through its
subsidiary group Origin Enterprises plc, the manufacture and
distribution of agri and nutrition products. The Group has
manufacturing, trading and distribution operations based in the
Republic of treland, the United Kingdom, Continental Eurcpe,
the United States of America and Canada.

During the year under review, the Group continued to

expand and develop its core activities. A detailed review of

the performance of the Group is included in the Chairman’s
statement and the Review of business operations. The directors
consider the state of affairs of the Company and the Group to
be satisfactory. A st of the Company’s significant subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture is set out on pages 105 1o 107,

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Board and senior management have invested significant
time and resources in identifying specific risks across

the Group, and in developing a culture of balanced risk
minimisation. The Group has formal risk assessment processes
in place through which risks and mitigating controls are
avaluated. These processes are driven by business unit
management, who are best placed to identify the significant
ongeing and emerging risks facing their businesses. The
outputs of these risk assessment processes are subject to
various levels of review, up to and including Board fevel. Risks
identified and associated mitigating controls are also subject 10
audit as part of operational, financial and heatth and safety audit
programmes.

The risks identified fall broadly into four categories: strategic/
commercial, operational, systems and financial. Some of the
most significant strategic/commarcial risks facing the Group
include the impact of changes in food consumption patterns
and the potential impact of competitor acthvity. [n addition the
Group faces the challenge of rising commodity and energy
costs and the related challengs of passing on price increases
to customers. The Group addresses these by focussing

on research and development and product innovation to
ensure that customer and consumer requirements are being
anticipated and met on a continuing basis. The Group alse
closely monitors emerging changes to regulations or legislation
on an ongoing basis. The attainment of the highest levels of
product quality and customer service are also core to reducing
the impact of these risks.

As a group that has grown both organically and through
acquisttions, |AWS Group, plc faces risks and challenges
associated with managing growth, and ensuring that processes
around acquiring and integrating new businesses are robust.
The managernent of major capital projects is also a key area

of risk for the business. There is substantial experience within
the Group of managing growth, and in successfully integrating
acquired businesses. There is also strong project management
capability with a track secord of success in this area. Financial,
commercial and operational due diligence is performed both
by external consultants and in-house experts in advance of all
new acquisitions. The integration of new acquisitions and the
delivery of major project initiatives is carefully managed and
controlled.

Operational risks facing the Group include issues associated
with product contamination and general food scares affecting
relevant products. A further operational risk to the Group, in
common with mast companies, is the risk of faiture to address
increasing compitance requirements particutarly in the areas of
health and safety, emissions and effluent control. These types
of risks are mitigated through the establishment of thorough
hygiene and health and safety systems, environmental/
discharge controls, auditing of supplier facilities and ensuring
product traceability,

The loss of a significant manutacturing/operational site through
naturat catastrophe or act of vandalism represents another risk
that could, potentially, have a material impact on the Group.

As a result, emphasis is given to ensuring that site security
measures at all Group locations are robust. In addition, the
Board is satisfied that significant managernent attention is given
to the development of comprehensive operational disaster
recovery plans,

Simitarly, a significant IT system faiture could adversely impact
on operations. As a result, IT disaster recovery plans and
system backup processes are implemented.

The Group has a track record of attracting and retaining

high quality senior management and staff internationally.

The Group is cognisant of cultural differences across the
markets in which the business operates, and has put in place
management teams with the skills and local knowledge to
trade successfully in the Group's markets. As a result, the
Group faces risks associated with the potential loss of key
management personnel, The Board addresses these risks
through incentivisation and retention initiatives, in addition

to robust succession planning.



Directors’ report (continued)

As an international Group with substantial operations and
interests outside the euro-zone, IAWS Group, plc is subject to
the risk of adverse movements in foreign currency exchange
rates. Exposures are managed through matching foreign
currency investments with foreign cumency bormowings and
through the use of foreign currency hedging contracts. Financial
risk managament objectives and policies are identified in

the Financial review, and in note 23 to the Group financial
statements on pages 78 to 79.

Restlts for the year

The results for the year are set out in the Group income
statement on page 37. Profit for the financial year before
dividends was €123,473,000 (2006: €99,729.000).

Dividends

An interim dividend of 7.51 cent per share amounting to
€9,516,000 was paid on ordinary shares. The directors
recommend a final ordinary dividend of 7.80 cent per share
subject to the shareholders’ approval which will be paid on

1 February 2008 to shareholders registered at close of business
on 25 January 2008. The total dividend for the year amounts

to 15.31 cent per ordinary share, an increase of 13.5% from
last year.

Future developments

The Group will continue to pursue new developments and
uniock shareholder value, through both organic growth and
acquisitions.

Research and development

The Group, through its extensive laboratory and testing
facilities, pursues ongoing research and development
programimes directed towards the developrnent of new value
added products.

Accounting records

The directors befieve that they have complied with the
requirements of Section 202 of the Companies Act, 1990

with regard to books of account by employing persennel with
appropriate expertise and by providing adequate resources to
the finance function. The books of account of the Cormpany are
maintained at Belgard Square House, Belgard Square, Tallaght,
Dublin 24,

Corporate governance

Staternents by the directors in relation to the Group's
application of the provisions of the 2003 FRC Combined Code
on Corporate Governance are set out on pages 23 to 26.

Corporate social responsibility

The Group views corporate social responsibility as an integral
part of the organisation's culture. In all matters the Group strives
to ensure it is acting in the best interests of all related parties
and stakeholders.

Directors’ and Secretary's interests

Details of the directors’ and Company Secretary's interests in
share capital and equity instruments are set out in the Report
on directors' remuneration on pages 27 to 33.

Substantlal holdings

As at 24 Septernber 2007 the directors have bean notified
of the following shareholdings which amaount to 3% or more
of the Company's issued ordinary share capital:

Numbher of %

shares
Bank of lretand Nominees Limited® 31,847,004 24
FMR Corp/Fidelity International Limited 15,823,985 12
Bank of America 4,067,000 3

* Bank of Ireland Nominees Limited advise that this shareholding
reprasonts the holding of their entire client base.

Events after the balance sheet date

On 31 July 2007, Origin Enterprises plc announced that it
had reached agreement to acquire the 50 per cent stake in
the Cdlums Group not already owned, as set out in note
34 to the Group financial statements. The transaction was
conditional upon clearance from the Competition Authority
which was received on 20 August 2007 and the transaction
was completed on 30 August 2007. Other than this, there
have bean no significant events since the year-end which
would require disclosure in the financial statements.

Directors and Secretary

Mr. D. Bucklay, Mr. J. B. Davy, and Mr. W. G. Murphy, having
served more than nine years as directors, retire in accordance
with the Articles of Association and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Mr. D. Lucey, Mr. O. Kilian and Ms. N. Hynes retire by rotation in
accordance with the Articles of Association and, being eligible,
ofier themsetves for re-election.
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Directors' report (continued)

Mr. T. O'Mahony, having been co-opted to the Board on 25
October 2008, retired at the December 2006 AGM and was
re-elected. Mr. T. O'Mahony retires without seeking re-election
and Mr. P. Lynch and Mr. D. Martin, having served more than
ning years as directors, also retire without seeking re-election.
Dr. P. Wall resigned effective 31 July 2007. There were no other
changes in directors during the year. None of the non-executive
directors has a service contract with any Group company.

Cn 22 February 2007, Mr, A, Lowther resigned as Company
Secretary and Mr. P. Morrissey was appointed Company
Secretary.

Going concemn

The directors have a reasonable expectation, having made
appropriate enquiries, that the Group and the Company hava
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future, For this reason, they continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Auditor

In accordance with Section 180(2) of the Companies Act, 1963,
the auditor, KPMG, Chartered Accountants, will continue in office.

On behalf of the Board

D. Lucey 0. Killian
Director Director
24 September 2007




Corporate governance statement

for the year ended 31 Juy 2007

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest standards
of corporate governance and this staterment describes how
the Company has applied the principles of the 2003 FRC
Combined Code on Corporate Governance (the Combined
Code), which is appended to the Listing Rules of the lrish
and London Stock Exchanges.

The Board and Committees

The Board is responsible for setting the strategic direction
and for providing leadership and control of the Gompany and
Group. Matters reserved for decision to the Board and its
committees are:

* Continuity or atteration of strategic direction of the Group.

+  Appointment or dismissal of the Chief Executive Cfficer
or the Company Secretary and recommendation for
appointment or dismissal of any member of the board.

+ Director and senior executive management succession
plarning.

* Policy on remuneration for executive directors and senior
executive management.

» Theissue of shares and debentures.

* Authorisation of arrangement of borrowing facilities.

* Sefting budgets.

*  Authorisation of major capital expenditure, acquisitions
and disposals.

* Dividend policy.

Enhanced and effective governance is achieved by the
separation of the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
The: Board has delegated responsibility for the day-to-day
management of the Group, through the Chief Executive Officer,
10 executive management.

Membership

Mr, T. O"Mahony, Mr. P, Lynch and Mr. D. Martin retire at the
2007 Annual General Meeting without seeking re-election

and, with the resignation of Dr. P. Wall effective 31 July 2007,
the Board will, for the greater part of the 2008 financial year,
comprise 10 directors, being the Chairman, three executive
directors and six non-executive directors. The Board considers
that all of its members are independent in both character and
judgment. The changes announced to the composition of the
Board take place against the background of the Board's policy
that at Jeast half of its membership, excluding the Chairman,
consist of directors determined to be independent based on
the Combined Code criteria.

The Board changes, coupled with the flotation and separate
admission to trading on the AIM/AEX markets of Qrigin
Enterprises plc, have altered the independence profile of
the Board for the purposes of the Combined Code and the
Board has determined that, judged against the criteria set
out in the Combined Code, Ms. B. Dardis, Ms. N, Hynes,

Mr. P. N. Wikinson, Mr. W, G. Murphy and Mr. D, Bucklay

are independent. In reaching that determination the Board
took into consideration factors that might appear to affect the
independence of Mr. W. G. Murphy and Mr. D. Buckley, being
their length of service on the Board and directorships of bodies
having business relationships with Crigin Enterprises plg, now
separately listed. In each case the Board decided that the
independence of the relevant director was not compromised.

Chairman

The Chairman is responsible for the operational efficiency of

the Board and for ensuring that all directors have full and timely
access to the information necessary to enable them to discharge
their duties. The Board is satisfied that the commitments of the
Chairman outside the Group are not such as to interfers with
the performance of his duties as Chaiman of the Group.

Senior Independent Director

Mr. P. N. Wilkinson is Senior Independent Director and is
available to shareholders if they have concemns that cannot be
addressed through the normal channels of Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer.

Cornpany Secretary

All directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, who also acts as secretary to alt of the
Board committees, is responsible to the Board for ensuring that
Board procedures are followed and ensuring compliance with
applicable rules and regulations. The directors also have access
to independent professional advice, at the Group's expense, i
and when required.

Induction and development

On appointment to the Board, directors are provided with
comprehensive documentation on the Group's operations,
and are given the opportunity to visit sites and meet with key
management. Directors also attend relevant courses and
seminars, as apgropriate.

Performance evaluation

Evaluation of the Board as a whole is the responsibility of the
Board under the direction of the Chairmman. The evaluation
process involves the assessment of the extent to which
objectives are achieved. During the year, performance
evaluations of the Board, individual directors and Board
commitiees were conducted by the Chaimmnan.

The non-executive directors, under the leadership of the Senior
Independent Director, Mr. P. N. Wilkinson are responsible for
the performance evaluation of the Chaimman. During the year,
Mr. P N. Wilkinson consulted with each non-executive director
individually on a formal basis for this purpose and consutted,
also, with the executive directars.
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Corporate governance statement coinued:

for the year ended 31 Ju'y 2007

Board succession planning Audit Committee
The Board considers that it is composed of persons who The Audit Committee comprises three non-executive
bring a balance of skilts and experience which is appropriate directors, namely Ms, N, Hynes (Chairman), Ms. B. Dardis and
to the requirements of the business. Changes to the Board's Mr. B N. Wilkinson, each of whom is considered by the Board
composition can be arranged without undue disruption. The to be independent. The Commitiee met four times during
Board plans for its own succession with the assistance of the the year. Ms. N. Hynes is a Chartered Accountant and has
Norminations Committee. significant recent and relevant financial experience. Dr. P. Wall
resigned from the Board (and ceased membership of the Audit
Retirerent and re-election Committee} effective 31 July 2007,
All directors are required 1o retire by rotation in accordance The Audit Committee’s role includes menitoring the integrity
with the Company’s Articles of Association. Since January 2006 of the Group financial staterments, and reviewing the interim
non-executive direciors with more than nine years service are and full year results announcements and significant financial
subject to annual re-glection. Of the remaining directors, reporting judgements contained therein. The Audit Committee
at least one third retire at each Annual General Meeting. also reviews the Group's internal controls, and the scope and
effectiveness of the Group's internal audit function. The Head of
Meetings Internal Audit has direct access to the Board Chairman and to

the Audit Committee at &l times and he and the Chief Financial

Meetings of directors are held regularly, usually on a monthly . ;
Officer regularly attend meetings of the Audit Committee,

basis. Fourteen Board meetings were held dusing the year.

Details of the meetings held during the year, both of the Board The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendations
and of the Board committees, are contained in the schedule to the Board in relation to the appointment and removal of
below, which also includes information on individual attendance. the external auditor and for approving their remuneration and

terms of engagement. It monitors the effectiveness of the audit
procass through regular contact with the auditor, and review

of the audit plan and findings. The Committee menitors the
external auditor's independence and objectivity, taking into
consideration relevant professional and regulatory requirements,
extent of services provided and fees paid.

In addition to the regular Board and committee meetings, the
Chairman meets with the non-executive directors periodically
without the executive directors being present.

Meetings held and attended in the financial year ended 31 July 2007 during the tenure of each director.

IACYUISINIONS)
Board fandiStiatedy Alid INoGnation [Bemuneration
Eiigible - Eligible Eligible Elig-ia;— Eligible

Attended to Atend Atftended to Attend Attended to Attend Atlended to Attend Attended to Attend
m-—ﬁ 12 ._“14 ) o T 3 __3_ B 8 ) 7_
B.Dads 13 14 a4 a S -
JBDaw 4 14 a4 4 I A
N ;i;ngs T 13 HﬁﬁM" ) T 4 —i: T -
;._Ka—:egmpq 13 ) 714 N ' S T
aaan—'__' 14 N 714774 4 o ;l T T -
D. Lucey o 14 N 14 4 _--t‘l o o 3 ___3__4 7 »—7——
Pmh 11 14 - - - -
D.Matn 12 18 o I - S
PMENt 14 14 4 4 o S B
T.OMahory 11 11 o T o o
\n_'\.'—._G._M_L;r;hy— o 12 o 1; . - S T 5 _7;__
Pwal 13 14 - o o
PNWiknson 12 14 4 4 & 4 I

*Or. P. Wall resigned from the Board of Directors effective 31 July 2007,



Corporate governance statement wcentinued.

for the year ended 31 July 2007

Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee is also responsible for developing a policy
on the engagement of the extemnal auditor to provide non-audit
services. The Audit Committee regutarty monitors the non-audit
senvices being provided to the Group by its external auditor,
and has developed an Auditor Independence Policy to check
that this does not impair its independence or objectivity. The
policy sets out four key principles which underpin the provision
of non-audit services by the external auditor: the auditor should
not audit its own firm’s work, make management decisions for
the Group, have a mutuality of financial interest with the Group,
or be put in the role of advocate for the Group. Activities that
may be perceived {0 be in conflict with the role of the external
auditor must be submitted to the Audit Committee for approval
prior to engagement, regardless of the amounts involved.

The Audit Committee, operating under its terms of reference,

discharged its responsibilities by reviewing:

s the Group's draft financial statements and interim results
staternent prior to Board approval and reviewing the
axternal auditor's reports thereon;

» the appropriateness of the Group's accounting policies;

* the Group audit fee and non-audit fees payable to the
Group's external auditor;

» the external auditor's plan for the audit of the Group's
aceounts, which included key areas of extended scope
work, key risks to the accounts, confirnations of auditor
Independence and the proposed audit fee, and approving
the terms of engagement for the audit;

= the output of the Group's risk assessment processes;

* post-acquisition reports on integration and performance
of significant recent acquisitions;

¢ theinternal audit function’s terms of reference, resources,
its work programme and reports on its work during the vear:

* the arrangements by which staff may in confidence,
raise concerns about possible improprieties in matters
of financial reporting or other matters;

» the Group's Financial Policies and Procedures manual.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. J. B. Davy (Chairman),
Mr. D, Buckey and the Company Chairman, Mr. D. Lucey {all non-
executive directors). The Nomination Committee is responsible for
recommending {o the Board directors for co-option and for the
continuous review of senior management succession plans. The
Board has not engaged extemal search senvices nor utilised open
advertising in the appointment of non-executive directors, Instead,
the process that has been used is for existing directors to identify
persons who meet specific requirements in terms of qualifications
and experience, The Nomination Committee then considers the
suitability of such persons in greater detail.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. J. B. Davy
{Chairman), Mr. W. G. Murphy, Mr. D. Buckley and the Company
Chairman, Mr. D. Lucey (all non-executive directors). The
Remuneration Committee determines and approves the Group
policy on executive remuneration packages. Mr. D. Lucey was
co-opted to the Remuneration Committee on 30 August 2006.
The Group's remuneration policy for executive directors and
detafls of directors’ remuneration are contained in the Report
on directors’ remuneration on pages 27 to 33 in accordance
with the Listing Rules of the Irish Stock Exchange.

Acquisition and Strategy Committee

The Acquisition and Strategy Committee comprises

Mr. D, Lucey (Chairman), Mr. Q. Kilian, Mr. P. McEniff,

Mr. P N. Wilkinson and Mr. J. B. Davy. They are responsible to
the Board for the detailed evaluation of acquisition prospects
and for making recommendations thereon. They are also
responsible to the Board for the continuous review of the
strategic direction and plans being pursued by the Group.

Internal controls

The directors have overall responsibility for the Group's

system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness.
This involves an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating

and managing the significant risks faced by the Group and
reviewing the effectiveness of the resuftant system of internat
control throughout the pericd and up to the date of approval

of the Annuaf Report and Financial Statements. This system is
designed to manage risks that may impede the achievement of
the Group's business objectives rather than to eliminate these
risks. The internal control system therefore provides reasonable,
though not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss. :

The directors confimm that the Group’s ongoing process for
identifying, evaluating and managing its significant risks is

in accordance with the Turnbull Guidance, Internal Control:
Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code, for the year
under review and to the date of approval of the Annual Report
and Financial Statements, These procedures, which are subject
to regular review, provide an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group,

The key risks which might impair the business from achieving

its objectives, are identified and assessed by conducting
detailed reviews with executive management at business

unit level, Management at all leve!s is responsible for internal
control. As such, the system of internal control throughout the
Group's operations ensures that the organisation is capable

of responding quickly 10 evolving business risks, and that
significant internal control issues, should they arise, are reported
promptly to appropriate levels of management.
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Corporate governance

for the year erded 31 July 2007

Internal controls (continued)

The directors have established a number of key procedures
designed 1o provide an effective system of internal control,
which include a provision for the directors to review the
effectiveness of the systemn. The key procedures, which are
supporied by detailed controls and processes, inchude:

Internal audit

A Group internal audit function, reporting directly to the Audit
Committee, undertakes examinations of business processes

on a risk basis and reports on controls throughout the Group.

Control environment

Maintaining an organisation structure with defined lines of
responsibility and specified delegation of authority within
which the Group's activities can be planned and monitored.

Financial reporting

A comprehensive financial reporting system involving the setting
of annual budgets and plans, timety monthly reporting and
variance analysis and ongoing review, supported by information
systems developed for the purpose.

Risk management policies

Comprehensive policies and pracedures ara in place relating
to computer security, capital expenditure, treasury risk
management and credit risk management. Reputational risk
management is also a key focus for the Group across all areas
of the business.

Annual review of internal controls

The directors confirm that they have conducted an annual
revew of the effectiveness of the system of internal control

as operated up 1o and including the date of approval of the
financial statements. This has had regard to the processes for
identifying the principal business risks facing the Group, the
methods of managing those risks, the controls that are in place
to contain them and the procedures to monitor them.

Communication with shareholders

Responsibility for effective communications with shareholders
and for the Board's understanding of the views of major
shareholders rests with the Chairman, On a day-to-day
basis, contact with shareholders is the responsibility of the
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer. The
Senior Independernt Director and any other member of the
Board are available to mest major investors if required. Such
communications are given high priority and there is regular
dialogue with individual shareholders, as well as general
presentations at the time of the release of the annual and
interim results,

statement rcontinued

The Board papers, which are generally distributed 10 all
directors in advance of Board meetings, include a report
prepared by the Chief Financial Cfficer summarising investor
relations activity during the preceding month including contacts
between directors and executive management and current and
prospective shareholders. The views of shareholders about the
Group expressed through such contacts are also included in
the report. '

The Group issues its results prompily to individual shareholders
and also publishes them on the Group's website, www.iaws.com.
The results announcement is broadcast live on the Group's
website and a recording of the webcast can subsequently be
viewed on the website. The Company’s Annual General Meeting
affords each shareholder the oppertunity to question the
Chairman of the Board, the Chairmen of all committees and all
other Board members. The notice of AGM and related papers
are sent 1o shareholders at least 20 working days before the
meeting. In addition, the Company responds throughout the
year to numerous queries from shareholders on a broad range
of issues.

Compliance

The Board is satisfied that, as at the date of this report, it has
taken the necessary steps to be in compliance with Section 1
of the 2003 FRC Combined Code.




Report on directors’ remuneration

for the year ended 31 July 2007

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee at 31 July 2007 comprised
Mr. J. B. Davy (Chairman), Mr. W. G. Murphy, Mr. D. Buckley
and Mr. D. Lucey, all non-executive directors who have no
financial interests, other than as shareholders, in the matters
to be decided, no potential conflicts of interest arising from
cross-directorships and no day-to-day involvement in the
running ¢f the business.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are

to determine the Group's policy on remuneration of executive
directors and to consider and approve the salaries and other
terms of the remuneration package for the executive directors.
The Remuneration Committee is alsa responsible for monitoring
the level and structure of remuneration for senior management.

Remuneration policy

The remuneration of the non-executive directors is determined
by the Board, and reflacts the time commitrnent and
responsibilties of the role. The Group's policy on executive
directors’ remuneration recognises that employment and
remuneration conditions for senior executives must property
reward and motivate them to perform in the best interests of
the shareholders. The typical elements of the remuneration
package for exacutive directors are basic salary and benefits,
performance related bonuses, pensions and participation in
the Group's long term incentive plans.

Executive directors’ basic salary and benefits

Basic salary of executive directors is reviewed annually with
regard to personal performance, Group performance and
competitive market practice. Employment related benefits
consist principally of a company car.

Performance related bonus

The Group pays performance related annual bonuses to
executive directors which are linked to the overall performance
of the Group.,

Pensions

Pension benefits are determined solely in relation to basic salary.

Group Long Term Incentive Plan

The Group operates three separate long term incentive
schemes two of which are under the IAWS Long Term Incentive
Plan 2006, while the third is the Group Executive Incentive

and Retention Plan approved in 2005, The awards under the
schemes are self limiting and the qualifying conditions attaching
to these schemes have been approved by the shareholders of
the Group.

All three schemes are explained in this Report on directors’
remuneration and the costs of the awards under each scheme
are charged to the income statemant in accordance with IFRS 2.

Earnings per share (EPS) growth, which is calcufated after
accounting for the cost of incentive scheme awards, is used as
the key economic condition for the vesting of incentive awards.

Curing the year the shareholders approved the establishment
of the IAWS Long Term Incentive Plan 2006 (the “IAWS

Plan”}. The IAWS Plan is an umbrella scheme which currently
incorporates two schemes, the Employee Equity Participation
Scheme ("EEPST) and the Executive Co-investrment Scheme
{"Matching Scheme™). The IAWS Plan is designed to ensure
the retention and incentivisation of executives, managers and
other employees and to attract new talent into the business.
The schemes are designed to align the interests of executive
directors and senior executives with the Group's shareholders
through the promotion and encouragement of share ownership
and to reward senior executives for driving the achievement of
superior financial targets.

EEPS

The EEPS effectively replaces the 1997 Share Option Scheme
(which expired in February 2007). Benefits under the EEPS
generally do not ves! unless growth in EPS during the
performance period (3 financial years) exceeds growth

in CPl plug 5% on an annualised basis.

Matching Scheme

Under the Matching Scheme participants have the prospect of
receiving up to 3 shares for each Qualifying Investment Share
held, EPS growth, measured over three financial years, has
been fixed as the performance vesting criteria per the following
table:

EPS Growth Muftiple {re Qualifying
Investment Shares}

CPl plus 10% or more

CPlplus > 7.5% < 10% 2
CPlplus > 5% < 7.5% 1
CPl plus < 5% 0

Qualifying Investment Shares (in shares or CFD equivalents)
must be held throughout the three year vesting period.
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Report on directors’ remuneration (continued)

for the year ended 31 July 2007

Group Executive Incentive and Retention Plan (EIRP)

The EIRP was adopted in January 2005 and operates by
providing contingent entitlernent to a lump sum award referable
to a participant’s reckonable salary, Awards are made subject
to achisvernent of target cumulative growth in lAWS's EPS
over the relevant period. The award is applied in the purchase
of shares in LAWS, to be held by a trustes for the banefit of
individual participants, for a fixed holding period, ranging from
3 to § years. Perforrnance is measured per the following table:

Cumutative annual growth Percentage of reckonable
in EPS since 1 August 2004 salary less prior year

entitlements
0510% 0%
> 10% £ 10.5% 35%
>10.5% £ 12.5% 50%
>12.5% 5 15% 75%
> 15% < 18% 90%
>18% s 21% 100%
>21% . 115%

Achievement of the EPS growth targets will be calculated by
reference to the Company's annual financial statements having
accounted for the cost of the awards as an expense item in
accordance with IFRS 2, Share-based Payment.



Report on directors

for the year ended 31 July 2007

Directors’ remuneration

Executive direclors
Basic salaries
Performance bonus
Benefits in kind
Pension contributions

Executive Incentive and Retention Plan

Average number of executive directors

Non-executive directors

Fees

Average number of non-executive directors

remuneration (continued;

2007 2006
€000 €000
1,556 1,099
2,223 966
97 85
202 194
484 282
4,562 2,626
4 3
€'000 €000
735 781
10 ikl
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Report on directors’ remuneration coninued)

for the year ended 31 July 2007

Individual directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 July 2007

Performance Pension

Basic salary bonus BIK contributions EIRP cost  Total 2007 Total 2006
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €000 €'000

Executive directors
O. Kiltiart (1} 760 500 27 87 234 1,608 1,176
P. McEnift (2) ' 297 797 "34 41 125 1,204 732
H. Kane {3) 297 797 24 48 125 1,291 718
T. O’'Mahony 202 129 12 26 - 369 -
1,556 2,223 g7 202 484 4,562 2,626

(1) During the year the EIRP plan invested €300,000 in [AWS Group, plc shares on behalf of Mr. O, Killian in respect of his 2006 award
and will invest a further €570,000 in the coming year in respect of his 2007 award. Mr. Kilian will own each allotment of shares five

years after each investment,

(2) During the year the EIRP plan invested €202,500 in [AWS Group, plc shares on behalf of Mr. P. McEniff in respect of his 2006 award
and will invest a further €222,561 in the coming year in respact of his 2007 award. Mr. McEniff will own each allotment of shares five

years after each investment.

(3} During the year the EIRP plan invested €202,500 in IAWS Group, pl shares on behatlf of Mr. H. Kane in respect of his 2006 award
and will invest a further €222,561 in the coming year in respect of his 2007 award. Mr. Kane will own each allotment of shares five

years after each investment.

Non-executive directors
D. Lucey

P. Lynch

D. Martin

D. Buckley

J. B. Davy

B. Dardis

J. C. Moloney (deceased)
W. G. Muphy

N. Hyres

P. wall

P. N. Wilkinson

2007 2006
€000 €'000
200 187
S0 71
50 50
60 60
70 70
55 55

- as

55 55
70 70
55 55
70 70
735 781




Report on directors' remuneration continued,

for the year ended 31 July 2007

Individual directors' remuneration for the year ended 31 July 2007 {continued)

Pension entitlements

Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

Aggregate pension benefits atiributable to directors under defined benefit schemes for the year were as follows:

2007

O. Kilkan
P. McEniff
T. O'Mahony

Q. Killian
P. McEniff

Increase in Transtfer value
Accrued annual accrued pension of increase  Accrued annual
pension at {excluding {excluding pension at
31 July 2007 inflation) inftation) 31 July 2006
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
330 72 914 249
64 4 4 57
62 2 - -
456 78 918 306
Increase in Transfer value
Accrued annual  accrued pension ofincrease  Accrued annual
pension at {excluding {excluding pension at
31 July 2006 inflation) inflation} 31 Juty 2005
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
249 35 400 208
57 23 82 34
306 58 482 242
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Report on directors' remuneration (continued)

for the year ended 31 July 2007

Directors’ and Company Secretary’s share interests

The directors and Company Secretary who held office at 31 July 2007 had no interests, other than those shown below, in the erdinary

shares in, or loan stock of, the Company or other Group undertakings. Beneficial interests at 31 July 2007 and 31 July 2006 were as follows:

Ordinary Shares in |[AWS Group, plc at 30 cent each

Directors

D. Lucey

0. Killian

P. McEnitf

M. Kane

T. C'Mahony
D. Buckley

B. Dardis

J. B. Davy

N. Hynes

P. Lynch

D. Martin

W. G. Murphy
P wall

P. N. Wilkinson

Secretary
P Morrissey

No. of shares No. of shares

2007

2,500
381,595
161,507
143,108

81,766
4,500
12,300
116,373

2,000

451,438
80,158
12,342

1,000

13,000

74,038

2006

2,500
312,845
123.851
105,452

70,084
4,500
12,300
116,373

2,000

451,438

80,158
6912
1,000
11,000

57,029

Details of the interests of Mr. O. Killian, Mr. P. McEniff, Mr. H. Kane, Mr. T. O'Mahony and Mr. P. Morrissey in () Share options under the
1997 Share Option Scheme (b} Share entitlements under the EEPS and (¢} Share entittements under the Matching Scheme are set out
on the next page. In addition, at 31 July 2007, Mr. T. O'Mahony was beneficially interested in 783,217 ordinary shares and 958,182

equity entitiements in Origin Enterprises plc.

There have been no changes in the interests as shown above between 31 Julty 2007 and 24 September 2007.



Report on directors’ remuneration centinued)

for the year ended 31 July 2007

Directors’ and company secretary's interests in equity instruments

Long term incentive scheme interests hekd during 2007 in respect of the ordinary shares of the Company are as follows:

1997 Share Option Scheme*

Directors

0. Killan

D. Martin

P. McEniff
H. Kane

T. O'Mahony

Secretary
P. Morrissey

t First tranche of options granted

31 July
2006

370,000
210,000
300,000
300,000
150,000

150,000

Exercised
in year

Granted
in year

1 Last tranche of options granted

Earliest

31 July exercisable
2007 datet
370,000  30/10/2006
210,000 07/10/2001
300,000  30/10/2006
300,000 30/10/2006
150,000 30/10/2006
150,000 30/10/2006

Weighted

average

Latest option price
expiry at 31 July
datet 2007
21/04/2016 €12.62
31/03/2011 €6.59
21/04/2016 €12.68
21/04/2016 €12.11
21/04/2016 €11.57
21/04/2018 €12.54

No eptions over ordinary shares were exercised by the directors or the Company Secretary of AWS Group, pic during the year. The

register of directors’ interests contains full details of directors’ options 10 subscribe for shares,

* This scherme expired in February 2007 and was replaced by the EEPS.

IAWS Plan - Matching Scheme

Directors
0. Killian
P. McEnift
H. Kane

Secretary
P. Momissey

IAWS Plan - EEPS

Directors
Q. Kilian
P. McEniff
H. Kane

Secretary
P. Morrissey

Awards at
1 August
2006

Share entittements
awarded under

Matching Scheme
during year
150,000
75,000
75,000
30,000
Share
entitlements
awarded Vested
during the during
year the year
350,000 -
200,000 -
200,000 -
50,000 -

Share entitlements
awarded under
Matching Scheme and
held at 31 July 2007

150,000
75,000
75,000

30.000

Lapsed
during the
year

Held at
3 July
2007

350,000

200,000
200,000

- 50,000

No other directors of the Company held kong term incentive scheme interests during 2007.

Date by

which qualitying
conditions

must be met

01/12/2009

01/12/2008

01/12/2008

01/12/2008

Date by Welghted
which average
gualifying  conversion
conditions  price at 31
must be met July 2007
12/03/2010 €17.10
12/03/2010 €17.10
12/03/2010 €17.10
12/03/2010 €17.10
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Statement of directors

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the Group and Comparny financial stataments, in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and
Company financial statements for each financial year. Under
that law the directors are required to prepare the Group financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ('IFRSs'} as adopted by the EU {EU IFRS) and

have elected to prepare the Company financial statements in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in
Ireland, camprising applicable law and the financial reporting
standards issued by the Accounting Standards Board and
promuigated by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Irefand.

The Group financial statements are required by EU [FRS to
present fairty the financial position and performance of the
Group: the Companies Acts, 1963 to 2006 provide, in relation
to such financial statements, that references in the relevant part
of that Act to financial staterments giving a true and fair view are
references to their achieving a fair presentation. The Company
financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company.

In preparing each of the Group and Company financial
statements, the directors are required to:

= select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

*  make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and the
Company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper books of
account that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure
that its financial statements comply with the Companies Acts,
1963 10 2006. They are also responsibie for taking such steps
as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the
Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable law and the requirements of the Listing Rules
tssued by the Irish Stock Exchange, the directors are also
responsible for preparing a Directors’ report and reports relating
to directors' remuneration and corporate governance that
comply with that law and those Rules.

responsibilities

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of tha corporate and financial information included on the
Group's website. Legislation in the Republic of Ireland governing
the preparaticn and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

On behalf of the Board

D. Lucey 0. Killian
Director Director
24 September 2007



Independent auditor's report to the members

of IAWS Group, plc

We have audited the Group and Company financial staterments
{the “financial statements") of IAWS Group, plc for the year
ended 31 July 2007, which comprise the Group Income
Statement, the Group Balance Sheet, the Group Cash Flow
Staternent, the Group Statement of Recognised Income and
Expense, the Group Statement of Accounting Pclicies and the
related notes, and the Company Balance Sheet, Company
Statement of Accounting Policies and related notes. These
financial staternents have been prepared under the accounting
policies set out therein.

This report is made sclely to the Company’s members, as a
body, in accordance with Section 193 of the Companies Act
1990. Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Company's members those matters we are required
to state 10 them in an auditer's report and for no other purpese.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and
the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed,

Respective respansibilities of directors and auditor

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual

Report and the Group financial staterments in accordance

with applicable law and ELU IFRS, and for preparing the
Company financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and the accounting standards issued by the Accounting
Standards Board and promulgated by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Ireland (Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice in Ireland), are set out in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities on page 34,

Qur responsibility is to audit the financial statements in
accordance with relevant legat and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland).

We report {0 you our opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view and have been property
prepared in accordance with the Companies Acts, 1963 to
2006 and whether, in addition, the Group financial staternents
have been properly prepared in accordance with Article 4

of the |AS Regulation, We also report to you our opinion as

to: whether proper books of account have been kept by the
Company; whether at the balance sheet date, there exists a
financial situation requiring the convening of an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company; and whether the information
given in the Directors' Report is consistent with the financial
staternents. In addition, we state whether we have obtained all
the information and explanations necessary for the purposes
of our audit and whether the Company balance sheet is in
agreement with the books of account.

We also report to you if, in our opinion, any information
specified by law or the Listing Rules of the [rish Stock Exchange
regarding directors’ remuneration and directors' transactions is
not disclosed and, where practicable, include such information
in our report,

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement
reflects the Company's compliance with the nine provisions of
the 2003 FRC Combined Code specified for our review by the
Listing Rules of the Irish Stock Exchange, and we report if it
does not. We are not required to consider whether the Board's
statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or
form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's corporate
governance procedures or its risk and control grocedures.

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report
and consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial
statements. The other information comprises only the Financial
Highlights, the Chairman's Statement, the Review of Business
QOperations, the Financial Review, the Directors' Report, the
Corporate Governance Statement, and the Report on Directors’
Remuneration, We consider the implications for our report if

we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements. Our responsibiiities
do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intermnational
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test
basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in
the financial staterments. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgements made by the directors

in the preparation of the financial staterments, and of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's and
Company's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other imegularity

or ermor. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financiat
statements.
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Independent auditor's report to the members
of IAWS GI’OUD, PIC eontinued

QOpinion
I our opinion

+ the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in
accordance with EU IFRS, of the state of the Group’s affairs
as at 31 July 2007 and of its profit for the year then ended,

* the Group financial statements have been property
prepared in accordance with the Companies Acts,
1963 to 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation;

« the Company financial statements give a true and fair
view, in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice in lreland, of the state of the Company's afairs
as at 31 July 2007; and

» the Company financial statements have been property
prepared in accordance with the Companies Acts,
1863 {0 2006.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which
we consider necessary for the purposes of our audit. In our
opinion proper books of account have been kept by the
Company. The Company balance sheet is in agreement

with the books of account.

In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report
is consistent with the financial statements.

The net assets of the Company, as stated in the Company
balance sheet, are more than half of the amount of its called-up
share capital and, in our opinion, on that basis there did not exist
at 31 July 2007 a financial situation which under Section 40 (1}
of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 1983 would require the
convening of an extraordinary general meeting of the Company,

KPMG

Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor
Dubiin

24 September 2007



Group income statement

for the year ended 31 July 2007

Notes

Revenue 1
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating costs, net 2
Operating profit before

amortisation of intangible

assets 1
Amortisation of intangible assets 14

L ]

Operating profit
Share of profit of associates

and joint venture 6
Profit before financing costs
Financing income
Financing costs
Profit before tax
Income tax expense 9
Profit for the financlal year
Aftributable as follows:
Equity shareholders
Minority interest 29
Basic eamings per share 1
Diluted earnings per share 1

Pre- Pre-
exceptional Exceptiona! Total exceptional  Exceptional Total
2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €000 €'000
1,907,619 - 1,907,619 1,657,305 - 1,557,305
{1,416,507) - (1.416,507) (1,204,238} - {1,204,238)
491,112 - 491,112 353.067 - 353,067
{344,664) 22,732 {37,932) (241,252) 1,347 {239,905)
146,448 22,732 169,180 111,813 1,347 113,162
(15,927) - (15,927) {7,100) - (7,100)
130,521 22,732 153,253 104,715 1,347 106,062
26,656 - 26,656 25,653 - 25,653
157,177 22,732 179,909 130,368 1,347 131,715
6,609 - 6,609 4,964 - 4,964
(36,708) - {36,708) (18,893) - {18,893)
127,078 22,732 149,810 116,439 1,347 117,786
(17,514} {8,823) {26,337) {17.800) (857) {18.657)
109,564 13,909 123,473 98,639 490 99,129
122,995 98,798
478 331
123,473 99,129
97.22¢ 78.68¢
96.04¢ 77.77¢c
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Group statement of recognised income and expense

for the year ended 31 July 2007

Notes
Items of income and expense recognised directly in equity
Foreign exchange translation adjustment
Share of associates' foreign exchange translation adjustment
Actuarial gain on Group and associate defined benefit pansion schemes
Deferred tax effect of actuarial gain
[Losses)/gains relating to cash flow hedges
Deferred tax effect of cash flow hedges
Revaluation gains on properties transferred to investment properties
Deferred tax effect of revaluation gains on properties transferred to investment properties

Net income recognised directly in equity

Profit for the financial year

Total recegnised income for the year

Attributable as follows:

Equity sharehclders 28

Minerity interest 29

Tetal recegnised income and expense for the year

2007 2006
€'000 €000
(4,063) (57)
1,684 524

12,594 4,811
(1,095) (469)
(1,952) 174
712 (40)
140,129 -
(25,502) -

122,507 4,943

123,473 99,129

245,980 104,072

244,933 103,720
1,047 352

245,980 104,072




Group balance sheet

as at 31 Juy 2007

ASSETS Notes

Non current assets

Property, plant and eguipment 12
Investment properties 13
Goodwill and intangible assets 14
Investments in associates and joint venture 15
Cther investments 16
Deferred tax assets 25

Total non current assets

Current assets

Inventory 17
Trade and other receivables 18
Derivative financial instruments ) 23
Cash and cash equivalents 21

Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

2007 2006
€000 €'000
356,483 308,388
165,473 -
784,481 334,024
169,005 159,221
204 203
14,689 8,474
1,490,345 810.310
137,646 88,539
240,451 206,178
734 1,832
86,059 74,656
464,890 370,805
1,955,235 1,181,115
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Group balance sheet coninued;

as at 31 July 2007

EQUITY '

Called up share capital
Share premium

Retained earnings and other reserves

Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of parent

Minority interest

TOTAL EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Non current liabilities

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Employee benefits

Deferred government grants

Other payables

Deferred tax liabiities

Provisions

Total non current liabilities
Current liabllities

Interest bearing borrowings
Trade and other payables
Corporation ax payable
Derivative financial instruments
Provisions

Total current liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Notes

27

28
28

23

22
25
24

25

20

22

23
20

2007 2006
€'000 €000
38,174 37,856
57,001 51,899
620,922 388,071
716,007 477,826
50,631 2,910
766,728 480,738
527,684 285,945
8,705 8,876
2,929 3,006
350 345
147,041 49,902
45,089 28878
731,798 376,952
37,958 5,136
383,065 299,570
31,741 13,832
3,945 747

- 4,142
456,709 323.427
1,188,507 700,379
1,955,235 1,181,115




Group cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 Juiy 2007

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax

Financing costs, net

Share of profit of associatas and joint venture
Exceptional items

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of government grants

Employee share-hased payment charge
Forgign exchange gains

Special pensien contribytion

Operating profit before changes in working capital
{Increase} in inventory

Decrease/{increase) in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operating activities
Interest paid

Income tax paid

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Notes

26

2007 2008
€'000 €000
149,810 117,786
30,099 13,929
{26,656) (25,653)
{22,732) (1,347)
33,451 27,631
15,927 7.100
79 (354}
6,007 1,550
(1,836} (684)
- {23.496)
183,991 116,462
{22,740) (84)
14,241 {32,124)
11,814 21,189
187,306 105,443
{29,547) {11.880)
(8,371) {11.583)
148,388 81,980
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GTOUD cash flow statement continued)

for the year ended 31 July 2007

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
- ongoing
- new investments

Proceeds from disposal of business

Acquisition of subsidiaries and businesses, net of cash acquired

Purchase of intangible assets

Cash received on dilution of Origin Enterprises ple, net

Insurance proceeds, net

Disposal of other investments

Dividends received

Purchase of minority interest

Investments in associates and joint venture
Deferred consideration and acquisition costs paid
Other

Net cash flow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital
Drawdown of loan capital

Capital element of finance lease Fabilities
Equity dividends paid

Receipt from derivative financial instrument

Net cash flow from financing activities

Net (decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Translation adjustment

Cash and cash equivalents at start of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Notes

21

2007 2008
€'000 €'000
1,912 4,448
{31,710 {7,910
{89,007) (67.947)
1,031 -
(442,449) {2,644)
(12,984) -
97,521 -
6,118 -

- 655
18,000 19,118
(857) {1,366)

- {35,061)
(3,571) (3,988)
5 (480)
{435,991) {95,175)
5,420 8,539
277,528 67,144
(363} (20.,453)
(18,089) (16,036)
1,343 -
265,839 39,194
(21,764) 25,999
470 380
69,798 43,419
48,504 69,798




Group statement of accounting policies

for the year ended 31 July 2007

AWS Group, plc (the “Company”) is a company domiciled and
incorporated in Ireland, The Group's financial statements for

the year ended 31 July 2007 consolidate the individual financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries {together referred
to as the “Group”) and show the Group's interest in associates
and joint venture using the equity method of accounting.

The individual and Group financial statements of the Comparny
werg authorised for issue by the directors on 24 September 2007.

Statement of compliance

As required by Eurcpean Union (EU) faw, the Group financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS} and their
interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (|ASB) as adopted by the EU.

The IFRS adopted by the EU applied by the Group in the
preparation of these financial statements are those that were
effective at 31 July 2007.

The Group has not applied the {ollowing IFRS and International
Financia! Reporting Interpretations Committee (FRIC}
Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective.
The directors have formed the opinion that the adoption of
these pronouncements will not have a significant effect on

the Group financial statements, except for IFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures and Armendment to IAS 1, Capital
disclosures. Their lkely impact is briefly outlined below:

*  Amendment to IAS 1, Capital disclosures {effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007). This
amendment will require additional disclosures regarding
the capital structure of the Group;

+ IFRS 7, Financial Instrurents: Disclosure {effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007). This
standard updates and extends disclosure requirements
of IAS 32 and will require significant additional disclosures
relating to risk management policies, processes and
financial instruments;

* IFRIC 10, interim FAnancial Reporting and Impairment
{effective for periods beginning on or after 1 November
20086); and

* IFRIC i1, IFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share Transactions
(effective for periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007).

Basis of preparation

The Group financial statements are prepared on the historical
cost basis except that the {ollowing assets and liabilities

are stated at their fair value: equity investments, investment
propertias, derivative financial instruments, pension obligations
and share-based payments. The financial statements are

presented in euro, rounded to the nearest thousand, which
is the functional currency of the parent and the majority of
the Group's operations.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires management 1o make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amountis of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and varicus other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under tha circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
Sources.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the pericd in which the estimate is revised if the nevision affects
only that pericd or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The areas involving a high degree of judgement, complexity,
or areas whera assumptions and estimates are significant to
the Group financial statements, refate primarily to accounting
for defined benefit pension schemes, financial instruments,
share-based payments, provisions, intangible assets, goodwill
impaiment and deferred tax.

The accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial
statements for the years ended 31 July 2007 and 2006 are set
out below and have been applied consistently over both years.

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements reflect the consolidation of the
results, assets and [iabilities of the parent undertaking and all of
its subsidiaries, together with the Group's share of profits/losses
of associates and joint venture. Where a subsidiary, associate or
foint venture is acquired or disposed of during the financial year,
the Group financial statements include the attributable results
from or to the effective date when control passes.

Subsidiary undertakings

Subsidiary undertakings are those entities over which the Group
has the power to control the operating and financial policies

s0 as to obtain economic benefit from their activities. The
amounts included in these financial statements in respect of

the subsidiaries are taken from their latest financial statements
prepared up to the year end. Where necessary, the accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Group statement of accounting policies centinuea:

for the year ended 31 July 2007

Basis of consolidation {continued)

Associates and joint venture

Associates are those entities in which the Group has a
significant influence over, but not controt of, the financial and
operating policies. Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting. Joint ventures are
those entities over whose operating and financial policies the
Group exercises control joinily, under a contractual agreement,
with one or more parties. Investments in joint ventures are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.

Under the equity method of accounting, the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of its associates and joint
venture is recognised in the income statement. The income
statement reflects, in profit before tax, the Group’s share of
profit after tax of its associates and joint venture in accordance
with LAS 28, Investments In Associates, and IAS 31, Interests
in Joint Ventures. The Group's interest in their net assets is
included as investments in associates and joint venture in the
Group balance sheet at an amount representing the Group’s
share of the fair value of the identifiable net assets at acquisition
plus the Group's share of post acquisition retained income

and expenses. The Group's investment in associates and joint
venture includes goodwill on acquisition. The amounts included
in thess financial statements in respect of the post acquisition
income and expenses of associates and joint venture are
taken from their latest financial statements prepared up 10 their
respective year ends together with management accounts

for the intervening periods t¢ the Group's year end. Where
necessary, the accounting policies of associates and joint
venture have been changed to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group. :

Transactions eliminated on consclidation

Intragroup balances and any unrealised gains and losses or
income and expenses arising from intragreup fransactions,

are eliminated in preparing the Group financial statements.
Unrealised gains and income and expenses arising from
transactions with associates and joint venture are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest in the entity. Unrealised losses
are eliminated in the same way as unredlised gains, but only to
the extent that they do not provide evidence of impairment.

Revenue

Revenue represents the fair value of the sale of gocds and
services supplied to third parties, after deducting discounts and
exclusive of value added tax. Revenue is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer, it is probable that the economic benefits
will low to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured refiably.

Segmental reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that

is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment} or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographic segment), which is subject
to risks and returns different from those of other segments.

The Group's primary format for segmental reporting is business
segments and the secondary format is geographical segments.
The risks and returns of the Group's operations are primarily
determined by the different products that the Group sells rather
than the geographical location of the Group’s operations.

In September 2006, the Group established a new operating
company creating a specialist focus around its original core
Agri and non Lifestyle Foods businesses. The Group transferred
these operations to a ngw wholly owned subsidiary, Origin
Enterprises plc (“Origin”). Accordingly, the Group has revised,

in the current period, its three business segments which form
the primary format for segmental reporting. These are now
Food Europe, Food North America and Origin. The Group's
geographic segmenis are Europe and North America,

Segment assets and liabilities consist of property, plant and
equipment, goodwill and intangibls assets and other assets
and liabilities that can be reasonably allocated to the reported
segment. Unallocated assets and liabilities principally include
current and deferred income tax balances together with
financial assets and labilities.

Research and development

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the
prospect of gaining new scisntific or technical knowledge
and understanding, is recognised in the income statement
as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research
findings are applied to a plan or design for the production

of new or substantially improved products and processes,

is capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources
10 complete development. The expenditure capitakised includes
the cost of materials, direct labour and appropriate proportion
of overheads. Other development expenditure is recognised in
the income statement as an expense as incurred. Capitalised
development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment iosses.



Group statement of accounting policies centinucd;

for the year ended 31 July 2007

Employee benefits

Pension obligations

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension
plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement
as the related employee service is received. The Group's

net obiigation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is
calculated, separately for each plan, by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their
sarvice in the cument and prior periods; that benefit is discounted
to determine the present value, and the fair value of any plan
assets is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the balance
sheet date on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity
dates approximating the terms of the Group's cbligations. The
calcutation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in
the statemenit of recognised income and expense. Current and
past service costs, interest on scheme kabilities and expected
raturn on assels are recognised in the income statement.

Equity settlad compensation

During the year, the Group established both the “IAWS Long
Term Incentive Plan 2006” {the “IAWS Plan”) and the “Origin
Long Term Incentive Plan 2006” (the “Crigin Plan").

The “1997 Share Option Scheme” expired during the year.

The Group continues 10 recognise a share-based payments
expense in respect of share options granted under the scheme
in previous years.

All equity instruments granted under the [AWS Plan, the

Crigin Plan and the 1997 Share Qption Scheme are equity
settled share-based payments as defined in IFRS 2, Share-
based Payment. The fair value of equity instruments granted

is recognised as an expensa with a corresponding increase in
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date and spread over
the peried during which the employees become unconditionally
entitied to the equity instrument. The fair value of the equity
instruments granted is measured using an approved model,
taking into account the terms and conditions under which the
equity instruments were granted. The plans and share option
scheme are each subject to a non-market vesting condition and,
therefore, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of equity instruments that vest.

Group Executive Incentive and Ratention Plan

The Group operates an incentive and retention plan for
executives. The plan operates on an individual basis by
providing contingent entitlemnent to a lumgp sum award referable
to reckonable salary. Awards are applied through the purchase
of shares in the Group to be held by a trustee for the benefit

of individual participants for a 3 to 5 year period. The costs
associated with the plan are written off fo the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the relevant pericd.

Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises

current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the
income statement except to the extent that it relates to items
recagnised directly in equity, in which case the refated tax is
recognised in equity.

Current income tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
incoma for the year, using tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet Eability
method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounis of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for 1axation purposes. The
amount of deferred income tax provided is based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. If the deferred
income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction does not affect accounting or taxable profit
or loss, it is not recognised. Deferred income tax Is provided on
temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

A deferred income tax asset is recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be avaitable
against which the asset can be recovered. Deferred income tax
assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign cumencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
balance sheet date are translated to functional currency at the
foreign exchange rate nufing at that date. Foreign exchange
differences arising on translation are recognised in the income
statement.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including
goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on consclidation,
are translated {0 euro at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date. The revenues and expenses of foreign
operations are translated to euro at the actual rates when the
transactions occurmed. Foreign exchange differences arising
on translation of the net assets of a foreign operation are
recognised directly in eguity, in a translation reserve.
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Group statement of accounting policies tcontinucd:

for the year ended 31 July 2007

Foreign currency (continued)

Exchange gains or lesses on long term intra-group loans and
on foreign currency borrowings, used to finance or provide

a hedge against Group equity investments in non-euro
denominated operations, are taken to the translation reserve
to the extent that they are neither planned nor expected to be
repaid in the foreseeable future or are expected to provide an
effective hedge of the net investment. Any differences that have
arisen since 1 August 2004, the date of transition to IFRS, are
recognised in the currency translation reserve and are recycled
through the income statement on the repayment of the intra-
group loan or on disposal of the related business.

Dividends

Dividends are recegnised in the period in which they are
approved by the Company's shareholders, or in the case
of an interim dividend, when it has been approved by the
Board of Directors and paid.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Other
subsequent expenditure is capitatised only when it increases
the future economic benefits embodied in the item of property.,
plant and eguipment. All other expenditure including repairs and
maintenance costs is recognised in the income statement as an
expense as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost less estimated
residual value of property, plant and equipment, other than
freehold land and assets under construction, on a straight line
basis, by reference to the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 25 to 50 years
Plant and machinery 310 15 years
Motor vehicles 310 7.5 years

The residual value of assets, if significant, and the useful life of
assets is reassessed annually.

Gains and losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment
are recognised on the completion of sale. Gains and losses on
disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds received
with the camying amount and are included in operating profit.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising land, is held for
capital appreciation. Investment property is staled at fair value.
The fair value is based on market value, being the estimated
amount for which a property could be exchanged in an arms
length transaction. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair
value is recognised in the income statement. When property

|

is transferred to investment property following a change in
use, any difference arising at the date of transfer between the
carrying amount of the property immediately prior to transfer
and its fair value is recognised in equity if it is a gain. Upon
disposal of the property, the gain would be transferred to
retained earnings. Any loss arising in this manner, unless it
represents the reversal of a previously recognised gain, would
be recognised immediately in the income statement.

Leased assets

Leases of property, plant and equipment, where the Group

has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the
inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased
asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
comesponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included in interest bearing loans and borrowings. The interest
element of the payments is charged to the income statement
aver the lease period so as to produce a constant periedic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
The asset acquired under the finance lsase Is depreciated over
the shorter of the useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the fessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to
the income statement on a straight line basis gver the lease term.

Goodwilt

All business combinations are accounted for by applying the
purchase method. Goodwill represents amounts arising on
acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and joint venture, In
respect of acquisitions that have occurred since 1 August
2004, goodwill represents the difference between the cost of
the acquisition and the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired. In respect of acquisitions prior to this date, goodwill is
included on the basis of its deemed cost, i.e. original cost less
accumulated amortisation from the date of acquisition up to

31 July 2004, which represents the amount recarded under
Irish GAAR. Goodwill is now stated at cost or deemed cost less
any accumulated impaimment kosses. In respect of associates
and joint venture, the camying amount of goodwill is included

in the carrying amount of the investment.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination
are valued at their fair value at the date of acquisition. These
generally include brand and customer related intangible assets.

Where intangible assets are separately acquired they are
capitalised at cost. Intangible assets are amortised over the
period of their expected usefu! lives in equal annual instalments.




Group statement of accounting policies centinucd)

for the year ended 31 July 2007

Intangible assets (continued)

The expected useful lives of intangible assets range from
12 {0 25 years.

Computer software that is not an integra! part of an item of
computer hardware is also classified as an intangible asset.
These intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost comprises purchase
price and other directly attributable costs. The expected useful
life of computer software is 5 years.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets, other than
inventories {which are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value), deferred tax assets (which are recognised
based on recoverability), and those financial instruments,

which are carmied at fair value, are reviewed to determine
whether there is an indication of impaiment when an event or
transaction indicates that there may be, except for goodwill and
long life intangibles. If any such indication exists, an impairment
test is carmied out and the asset is written down to its
recoverable amount. Goodwill is tested for impaimment annually.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying
amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impalment losses are recognised in the
income statement. Impaimment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first 1o reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit
and then, to reducs the carrying amount of the other assets

in the unit on a pro rata basis. An impairment loss, other than
in the case of goodwill, is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only o the extent that the
asset'’s camying amount does not exceed the camrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, it no impairment 1oss had been recognised.

QOther investments

Other investrents are recognised at the fair vaiue of the
consideration given inclusive of any acquisition charges ansing.

Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost on a first in, first out
basis and net realisable value. Cost inctudes all expenditure,
which has been incurred in the normmal course of business in
bringing the products to their present location and condition.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price of inventory on
hand less all further costs to completion and all costs expected
to be incurred in marketing, distribution and selling.

Trade and other receivables and payables

Trade and other receivables and payables are stated at cost
less impairments, which approximates fair value given the short-
dated nature of these assets and jiabilities.

Trade receivables are carried at original invoice amount less an
allowance for uncollectible debts. Provision is made when there
is objective evidence that the Group may not be in a position to
collect the associated debts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash
at bank and in hand and call deposits. Bank gverdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group'’s
cash management ara included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash
flows.

Share capital

Crdinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown
in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Financial assets and liabilities

Set out below are the major methods and assumptions used
in estimating the fair values of financial assets and liabilities.

Equity investments

When market values are available, fair value is determined by
reference to the bid market price for such investments without
any deduction for transaction costs. When market values are
not available, the fair values have been determined based

on expected future cash flows at current inierest rates and
exchange rates.

Short term bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
For short term bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
with a remaining malurity of less than one year, the nominal
amount is considered 1o approximate fair value.

Trade and other receivables/payables

For receivables and payables with a remaining life of less

than one year or demand batances, the nominal amount is
considered to approximate fair value. All other receivables and
payables are discounted to determine their fair value.

Derivatives

Forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps are marked
to market using quoted market values.
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Group statement of accounting policies wontnucd)

for the year ended 31 July 2007

Financial assets and liabilities {continued)

Interast bearing loans and borrowings

For interest bearing loans and borrowings with a contraciual
repricing date of less than six months, the nominal amount is
considered to approximate falr value. For loans with a repricing
date of greater than one year, the fair value is calculated based
on the expected future principal and interest cash flows,
discounted at appropriate current market interest rates.

Finance fease liabilities

Fair value is based on the present value of future cash flows
discounted at appropriate current market rates,

Derivative financial instruments

All derivatives are initially recorded at fair value on the date

the contract is entered into and subsequently, at reporting
dates remeasured to their fair value. The gain or kess arising on
remeasurement is recognised in the income statement except
where the instrument is a designated hedging instrument.

Derivative financial instruments are used to manage the
Group's exposure to foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and commodity price risk through the use of forward cumency
contracts, interest rate swaps and futures contracts, These
derivatives are generally designated as cash flow hedges

in accordance with tAS 38. The Group does net enter into
speculative derivative transactions.

Cash flow hedges

Subject to the satisfaction of certain criteria, relating to the
documentation of the risk, objectives and strategy for the
hedging transaction and the ongoing measurement of its
effectiveness, cash flow hedges are accounted for under hedge
accounting rules. In such cases, any unrealised gain or loss
arising on the effective portion of the denivative instrument

is recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve, a separate
component of equity. Unrealised gains or losses on any
ineftective portion of the derivative are recognised in the income
statement. When the hedged transaction occurs the related
gains or losses in the hedging reserve are transterred to the
incorng statement.

Interest bearing borrowings

Interest bearing borrowings are recognised initialty at fair

value less aftributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost, using an effective interest rate method.

Government grants

Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are shown as deferred income and amortised in the Group
income statement by instalments on a basis consistent with
the depreciation policy of the relevant assets.

Cther grants are credited to the income statement to offset
the matching expenditure.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of

a past event and it is probable that an cutfiow of sconomic
benefits will be required 1o settle the obligation. If the effect

is matenal, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money

and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liahility.

Exceptional items

The Group has adopted an income statement format which
seeks 1o highlight significant iterns within the Group results for
the year. The Group believes that this presentation provides a
more informative analysis as it highlights one off items. Such
items may include significant restructuring costs, profit or loss
on disposal or terminaticn of operations, claims, litigation costs
and sottlernents, pension exit costs, profit or loss on disposal
of investments and significant impaimment of assets. Judgement
is used by the Group in assessing the particular items, which
by virtue of their scale and nature, should be disclosed in the
income staternent and related notes as exceptional iterns.



Notes to the Group financial statements

for the year ended 31 July 2007

(@

Segment information

Analysis by business segment
Il Segment revenue and result
FOOD FOOD TOTAL
EURQOPE NORTH AMERICA ORIGIN UNALLOCATED * GROUP
2007 2008 2007 2006 2007 2008 2007 2006 2007 2006
€000 €'000 €00 €'000 €'000 €000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Segment
revenue 649,125 601,362 369,131 139,072 869,363 816,871 - - 1,007,619 1,557,305
Operating
profit before
aexceptional
items 66,576 80,484 41,745 18,631 38,127 34,690 - - 146,448 111,815
Exceptional
itams (3,683 - (2,783) {(22B) 1,146 1,575 28,052 - 22,732 1,347
QOperating
profit before
amertisation
of intangible
assets 62,863 60,404 38,962 18,403 29,273 36,265 28,052 - 169,180 113,162
Amortisation
of intangible
assets (6,882) B.114) (8,248) (264) {797) (722) - - (15,927) 7.100)
Operating
profit 56,011 54,380 30,714 18,139 38,478 35,543 28,052 - 153,253 106,062
Share of profit of
associates and
joint venture 7,209 6,489 15,773 14,793 3,674 4,371 - - 28,658 25,653
Profit before :
financing
costs 83,220 60,869 46,487 30,932 42,150 39,914 28,052 179,909 131,715

* The Group has allocated neither the gain on gditution of Crigin Enterprises ple nor pension exit costs to any business segmant

£002 Wodey |enuuy ojd ‘dnoss Smy)




|IAWS Group, pic Annual Report 2007

Notes (continuad)
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Segment information (continued)
Analysis by business segment {continued)

) Segment assets

Segment assets excluding
invastments in associatas
and joint venture

Investments in associates
and joint venture

Segment assets

Reconciliation to total assels as
reported in Group balance sheet

Listed imesiments

Derrvative financial ingtniments
Cash end cash aquivalents
Deferred tax assets

Total assets as reported In
Group balance sheet

(6if} Segment llabilities
Segment liabilities

Recancillation to total labilities as
reported in Group balance shoet
Interest bearing koans and borrowings

Dertvative financial instruments
Income tax and deterred tax lzbiities

Total liabilities as reported in the
Group balance sheet

FOOD FOOD TOTAL
EURCPE NORTH AMERICA ORIGIN GROUP
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
€000 €'00C €'000 €000 €'000 €000 €'000 €000
565,040 517,921 715,193 170.678 404,313 248,530 1,684,544 937,129
77,777 74,024 64,707 65,577 26,521 19,620 169,005 158,221
§42.817 591,945 779,900 236,255 430,832 268,150 1,853,549 1,086,350
204 203
734 1,832
86,059 74,556
14,689 B,474
1,955,235 1,181,115
203.768 190,846 104,899 23,565 131,471 130,406 440,138 344,817
565,842 201,081
3,845 747
178,782 63,734
1,188,507 700,379
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Segment information (continued)
Analysis by business segment (continued)

{iv) Other segment information

FOOD FOOD TOTAL
EURQPE NORTH AMERICA ORIGIN ‘GHOUP
2007 2008 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
€000 €'000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €'000 €000
Deprociation 15,422 14,749 10,502 5532 7,527 7.350 33,451 27,631
Capitat expenditurs — proparty,
plant and equipment 68,671 17,941 24,835 27,006 10,187 8,845 101,683 53,502
Capitaf expenditure — computer
refated intangbles 725 4,625 581 - 29 69 1,335 4,694
Capitat expenditure — brand related
intangibles 12,984 - - - - 782 12,984 782
Total capital expenditura 80,330 22,566 25418 27,006 10,216 9,496 118,012 59,068
Analysis by geographical segment
FOOD TOTAL
EURQPE NORTH AMERICA GROUP
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
€'000 €000 €'000 €000 €'000 €000
Segment revenue 1,533,488 1,418,233 389,131 139072 1,907,619 1,557,305
Segment assets 1,073,849 860,005 779,900 236255 1,853,545 1,096,350
Capital expenditure 90,596 32,062 25,418 27.006 118,012 59,068
Operating costs 2007 2006
€'000 €'000
Distribution expenses 239,138 152,029
Administration expenses 105,211 89,808
Other operating expense/{income) s (585)
Exceptional tems {22,732) {1,347)
321,932 239,905

lra—l 200z viodey |enuuy 2jd ‘dnoig Spmy)



IAWS Group, plc Annual Report 2007

e,

Fon

Notes {continued)

2 Operating costs {continued) 2007 2006
€000 - €'000

Other operating expense/(income} and exceptional tems comprise the following net charges/(credits):

Other operating expense/(income):
Capitat grants released to income statement (79) {354)
Cther 394 {231)
315 {585)
Exceptional items:
Gain on dilution of Origin Enterprises plc (i) (44,197} -
Pension exit costs (@) 16,145 -
Less on disposal and termination of operations (ji} 5,162 572
Loss/{gain} on disposal and impaimments of property, plant and equipment 1,314 {1,304}
Gain on disposal of other investments - (615)
Insurance setttements, other restructuring costs and litigation claim {v) {1,156) -
(22,732) {1.347)

) Gain on dilution of Origin Enterprises plc
In September 2006, the Group established a new operating company, Origin Enterprises plc {"Origin®) and on 3 April 2007,
the Group transferred its core Agri and non Lifestyle Foods businesses to Origin, During the year, management purchased
ordinary shares in Origin {otalling 4.7% of the then aflotied share capital. On 5 June 2007, Origin allotted 33.3m shares in
an initial public offering. This represented 25% of the enlarged share capital of Origin. The Group recognised a net gain
on dilution of Crigin of €44.2m being the difference in the proceeds received, net of costs, and the carrying amount
of minority interest arising on the initial public offering.

(il Pension exit costs
€16.1m of costs were recorded as an exceptional tem in the current year in relation to the restructuring of the LAWS Group
Defined Benefit Pension Scheme (Note 26} '

fi} Loss on disposal and termination of operations
During the year a loss on disposal of operations was recognised on the disposal of assets in Power Seeds Limited, an Irish
based company engaged in the business of seed assembly.

In addition a loss on termination of operations was recognised which consists primarily of provisions and impaiments of
property, plant and equipment made in respect of the termination of warehousing and distribution operations in the Lifestyle
Feods business.

[ 20086, the loss on termination of operations consisted primarily of the loss on the disposal of Premier Petfoods Limited.

(v Insurance settiement, other restructuring costs and litigation claim

During the year, two facilities operated by the Group suffered fire damage. Contingency plans were implemented and the
impact on customers and operations was minimised. The insurance settlement represents the excess of the proceeds over
the net book value of the assets destroyed and other restructuring costs incurred. The Group also recorded a charge for a
litigation claim during the year.




Notes (continued)

3 Financing costs
Financing income
Interest income
Defined benefit pension cbligations: expected return on scheme assets (Note 26}
Total financing {income)
Financing costs
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts
Interast payable under finance leasas
Defined benafit pension obligations: interest cost on scheme liabilities (Note 26)
Financing charge on deferred consideration

Total financing costs

Financing costs, net

4 Statutory and other information

Group operating profit was arrived at after charging/(crediting) the following amounts:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
- owned assets

- leased assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortigation of government grants

Ogperating lease rentals
- plant and machinery
- other

Research and development expenditure
Auditor's remuneration for audit services
Auditor's remuneration for non-audit services

2007 2006
€'000 €'000
{1,048) (387)
{5,561) {4.577)
{6,609) {4,964)
30,480 13,407

157 460

4,733 4,282
1,338 744
36,708 18,893
30,009 13,929

2007 2006
€'000 €000
32,987 27,072

464 559
15,927 7,100
(79} (354)

2,218 1,526
20,715 12,849

6,483 5,900

1,290 974

1,617 1,197
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Notes (continued)

5 Directors’ emoluments and interests

Directors' emoluments and interests are given in the Report on directors’ remuneration on pages 27 to 33 inclusive in this

Annual Report.

6 Group share of associates and joint venture profit after tax

Associates Joint venture
2007 2006 2007 2006
€'000 €000 €000 €'000
Group share of:
Revenus 253,132 203,030 51,820 52,900
Profit after tax 10,883 10,860 15,773 14,793
7 Employment
The average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was as follows:
2007 2006
Sales and distribution 2,342 1,702
Production 2,156 1,504
Management and administration 642 588
5,140 3,794
Aggregate employment costs of the Group are analysed as follows:
2007 2006
€'000 €'000
Wages and salaries 183,935 133,252
Social welfare costs 25,785 21,783
Pension costs (Note 26}
- defined benefit schemes - statement of recognised income and expense {9,060) 4,811}
- defined benefit schemes — income statement* 12,594 1,796
- defined contribution schemes 2,684 2,228
Share-based payment (Note 8) 6,007 1,550
221,945 155,798

* Consists principally of settlement costs relating 1o the purchase of annuities for pensioners of the LAWS Group Defined Benefit

Pension Scheme



Notes {continued)

8 Share-based payments

The Group grants equity instruments under the following plans and schemes:

+ The 1997 Share Option Scheme

* The Employee Equity Participation Scheme (EEPS) {IAWS Long Term Incentive Plan 2006)

* The Executive Co-Invesiment Schems {Matching Scheme) (LAWS Long Term Incentive Plan 2006)
¢ The Origin Long Term Incentive Plan 2006

The general terms and conditions applicable to the equity instruments granted by IAWS Group, ple and its subsidiaries under the
above listed plans are addressed in the Report on directors’ remuneration and in this note.

The equity instruments granted to the Group's employees under the above plans are equity-settled share-based payments as
defined in IFRS 2, Share-based Payment. The IFRS requires that a recognised valuation methodology be employed to determine
the fair value of equity instruments granted and stipulates that this methodology should be consistent with methodologies used
for the pricing of financial instruments. The expense reported in the Group income statement of €6,007,000 (2006: €1,5650,000)
has been arrived at through applying a recognised valuation model. This expense is made up of the 1997 Share Opticn Schemne
charge of €2,402,000, the EEPS charge of €1,161,000, the Matching Scheme charge of €2,239,000 and the Origin Long Term
Incentive Plan charge of €205,000.

(a) The 1997 Share Option Scheme
Impact on income statement

The measurement requirements of IFRS 2 have been implemented in respect of share options that were granted after
7 November 2002 that had not vested at the date of {ransition of the Company to (FRS (1 August 2005). The expense
disclosed in the Group income statement relates to options granted in November 2003 and subsequent years.

2007 2006
€'000 €'000
Granted in FY 2004 217 867
Granted in FY 2005 - -
Granted in FY 2006 2,185 683
2,402 1,550
Details of options granted under the share option scheme
2007 2007 2006 2006
Weighted Weighted
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
€ €
Options outstanding at beginning of year 10.82 5,587,500 7.40 4,314,000
Granted during the year (i} - - 14.16 2,692,500
Lapsed during the year 10.98 (330,500) 7.96 (136,000
Exercized during the year 7.42 (716,750) 6.67 (1,283,000}
Options outstanding at end of year 11.35 4,540,250 10.82 5,587,500
Exercisable at end of year 7.80 2,004,750 6.93 1,874,500
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Notes continued)

8 Share-based payments (continued)
) During the year, employees were not granted any options over the Company's ordinary shares.

In prior year, pursuant to the share option scheme, employees were granted options over 2,692,500 of the Company's
ordinary shares. These grants comprised options over 1,320,000 shares and 1,372,500 shares which may be exercised
after the expiration of three and five years, respectively, from the dates of grant of those opticns subject to specified EPS
growth targets being achieved. All options granted have a contractual life of ten years.

The weighted average share price on the date options were exercised during the year was €17.78.

Analysis of closing balance - outstanding at the end of the year

Actual Actual
Exercise  Number of remaining Number of remaining
price options life (years) options life {years)
2007 2007 2006 2008
Options by exercise price €2.92 - - 70,000 0.75
€3.20 67,000 0.26 85,000 1.26
€2.10 82,000 1.18 106,500 2.18
€4.70 5,000 224 5,000 3.24
€6.70 320,000 272 440,000 3.72
€7.50 182,000 3.25 277,000 4.25
€7.40 100,000 3.66 100,000 4.66
€7.95 385,850 4.25 627,000 525
€9.20 126,000 4,71 164,000 5.71
€9.15 736,900 6.26 1,020,500 7.26
€11.65 185,000 g.22 195,000 9.22
€14.36 2,340,500 8.72 2,497 500 9.72
Total outstanding as at 31 July 4,540,250 5,587,500
Analysis of closing balance - exercisable at end of year
Actual Actual
Exercise  Number of remaining Number of remaining
price options life (years) options life {years)
2007 2007 2006 2006
Options by exercise price €292 - - 70,000 0.75
€3.20 67,000 0.26 85,000 1.26
€210 82,000 1.18 106,500 2.18
€4.70 5,000 224 5,000 3.24
€6.70 320,000 272 440,000 3.72
€7.50 182,000 3.25 277.000 4.25
€7.40 100,000 3.66 100,000 4,66
€7.95 385,850 4.25 627,000 5.25
€9.20 126,000 4.7 164,000 571
€9.15 736,900 6.26 - 7.26

Total exercisable as at 31 July 2,004,750 1,874,500



Notes (continued)

8

Share-based payments (continued)

The weighted average fair values assigned o options granted under the share option scheme, which were computed in
agcordance with a binomial valuation methodology. were as follows:

3 year § year

€ €

Granted in FY 2004 2.49 -
Granted in FY 2005 - ) -
Granted in FY 2006 ' 2.66 3.69

The fair values of options granted under the share eption scheme were determined using the following assumptions:

FY 2006 FY 2005 FY 2004

3 Year 5 Year 3 Year 5 Year "3 Year - 5 Year

Weighted average exercise price (€) 13.96 14.36 - - 9.15 -

Risk-free interest rate (%) 3.58 3.82 - - 2.00 -
Expected dividend payments over the

expected life (%) 1.00 1.00 - - 1.00 -

Expected volatility (%) 17.44 20.80 - - 27.00 -

Expgmed life in years 5 7 . - 7 -

The expected volatility was determined using the IAWS Group, plc month-end share prices in respect of the three year period
preceding the grant of the share options. Share options are granted at market value at the date of grant. The expected life of
the options is the average period from the date of grant 1o the date of exercise,

Other than the assumptions listed above, no other features of option grants were factored into the determination of fair value.

There were no modifications effected to the share optit:;n scheme during the course of 2007 and 2006.

(b} EEPS

Under the terms of the EEPS, employees are issued equity entilements of €0.30 in the Company which will be converted into
Ordinary Shares of €0.30 in the Company after the expiration of 3 years. The conversien will only occur upon the receipt of the
conversion price from the employee, the happening of specified EPS targets and the employee remaining in employment.

Impact on income statement

2007 2006

€'000 €'000

Issued in FY 2007 1,161 -
1,161 -
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8 Share-based payments (continued)

Detalils of equity entitlements issued under the EEPS

2007 2007

Weighted Number

conversion of equity

price entitlements

€

Qutstanding at beginning of year - -
lssued during the year () 17.10 970,000
Cutstanding at end of year 970,000

Convertible at end of year - -

 During the year, employees were issued 970,000 equity entitiements in the Company. All equity entitiements granted have
a life of ten years.

Analysis of closing balance - outstanding at the end of the year

Number Actual
of equity remaining
Conversion  entitlements life (years}
price 2007 2007
Equity entitlernent by conversion price l 17.10 970,000 9.62
Total outstanding as at 31 July 970,000
b 1

Analysis of closing balance - convertible to Ordinary Shares at end of the year
No equity entitlements are convertible into Ordinary Shares at the end of the year.

The fair values of equity entitlements issued under the scheme were determined using the following assumptions:

N FY 2007
Weighted average conversion price (€) 17.10
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4
Expected dividend payments aver the expected life {3} 1
Expecied volatility {%) 17
Expected life in years 53

The expected volatility was determined using the LAWS Group, pic month-end share prices in respect of the four year period
preceding the grant of the equity entitlemnents. Equity entitlernents are issued with a conversion price being the market value
at the date of issue.

The expected fite of the equity entitlements is the average period from the date of issue to the date of conversion. It was
assumed that 20% of vested equity entitlements would be converted each year regardless of share price at conversion.
In addition it was assurned that a further 60% of equity entitlernents would convert provided that a minimum gain of 25%

IAWS Group, plc Annual Report 2007

of the conversion price was achievable.
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Share-based payments {continued)
(c) Matching Scheme

Under the terms of the Matching Scheme, employees are issued equity entitlements of €0.30 in the Company which will be
converted into Ordinary Shares of €0.30 in the Company after the expiration of three years. The conversion will onty occur
upon the receipt of the conversion price from the employes, the happening of specified EPS targets and the employee

remaining in employment.

Impact on income statement

Issued in FY 2007

Details of equily entitiements issued under the Matching Scheme

Cutstanding at beginning of year
Issued during the year (i)

Cutstanding at end of year

Convertible at end of year

2007 2006

€000 €000

2,239 -

2,239 -
2007 2007
Weighted Number
conversion of equity
price entittements

e
0.30 405,000
405,000

(h During the year, employees were granted 405,000 equity entitlements in the Company. All equity entitlernents granted

have a life of ten years.

Analysis of closing balance - outstanding at the end of the year

Equity entitlements by conversion price

Total outstanding as at 31 July

Number

of equity

Conversion entittements
price 2007

0.30 405,000

405,000

Analysis of closing balance - convertible to Ordinary Shares at end of the year

No equity entitlernents are convertible into Ordinary Shares at the end of the year.

Actual
remaining
life (years)

2007

9.62

The weighted average fair value assigned to equity entitlements issued under the Matching Scheme represents the value
of an ordinary share adjusted for the lost dividends between date of issue and vesting date.
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Notes (continued)

8 Share-based payments (continued}
(d) The Origin Long Term Incentive Plan (the “Qrigin Plan”)
Ordinary Share Awards

Under the terms of the Origin Plan, 4,682,134 Ordinary Shares were issued to senior executives during the year, As the
consideration paid for these shares equatled their fair value, no additional share-based compensation charge was recorded
under IFRS 2, Share-based Payment. To retain the Ordinary Shares issued under the terms of the Origin Plan, the senior
executives must remain with Origin Enterprises plc for five years and financial targets must be achieved. i the senior
executive leaves before the five year period or the financial targets are not achieved, the Ordinary Shares issued under

the terms of The Origin Plan may be reacquired by Origin Enterprises plc.

Awards of ather Equity Entitlements

Under the terms of the Origin Plan, employees are issued equity entitlements of €0.01 in Qrigin Enterprises plc which will be
converted into COrdinary Shares of €0.01 in the Company after the expiration of 5 years. The conversion will only oceur upon
the happening of specified EFS targets and the employee remaining in empioyment.

impact on income statement

2007 2006
€'000 €'000
Issued in FY 2007 205 -
205 -
Details of equity entitiements issued under the Origin Plan
2007 2007
Weighted Number
conversion of equity
price  entitlements
€
Qutstanding at beginning of year - -
Issued during the year (i) 0.01 5140,770
Qutstanding at end of year 5,140,770
Convertible at end of year - -
{} During the year, employees were issued 5,140,770 equity entitiements in the Company.
Analysis of closing balance - cutstanding at the end of the year
Number
of equity
Conversion entitlements
price 2007
Equity entitltements by conversion price 0.01 5,140,770

Total outstanding as at 31 July 5,140,770




Notes {continued)

8

Share-based payments (continued)
Analysis of closing balance - convertible to Ordinary Shares at end of the year
No equity entitlements are convertible into Ordinary Shares at the end of the year,

The weighted average fair value assigned to equity entittements issued under the Origin Plan was calculated as the fair value
of an ordinary share adjusted for the lost dividends between the date of issue and the vesting date.

tncome tax 2007 2006
€'000 €'000

Current tax:

Republic of Irefand:

Corporation tax on profits for the year at 12.5% (2006: 12.5%) 24109 5,848

Less: manufacturing relief (7086) 617)

Adjustments in respect of grior years (521) 112

Double taxation reliet - (149)
22,882 5,194

Overseas:

Current 1ax on profit for the year 4,775 9,683

Adjustments in respect of prior years 284 {381)

5,058 9,302

Total current tax charge 27,941 14,496

Deferred tax:

Origination and reversal of timing differences (2,343) 4,368

Adjusiments in respect of prior years 739 {207)

Total deferred tax charge {1,604) 4,161

Income tax expense 28,337 18,657

The deferred tax charge for the Group for the year ended 31 July 2007 reflects the impact of the legislated reduction in the UK
tax rates from 30% to 28%.
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Notes {continued)

9 Income tax (continued) 2007 2006
€'000 €'000

Reconciliation of average effective tax rate to applicable tax rate

Profit before tax 149,810 117,786
Less share of profits of associates and jeint venturg {26,656) {25,653)
123,154 92,133

Taxation based on Irish corporate rate of 12.5% (2006: 12.5%) 15,394 11.517
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 6,992 1,602
Higher rates of tax on other income 411 1,146
Higher rates of tax on overseas earnings 4,051 5,692
Adjustments in respect of prior years 502 (476)
Manufacturing refief (706} (B17)
Utilisation of losses forward {791) {255)
Other items 484 148
26,337 18,657

Movement on deferred tax asset/{liability) recognised directly in equity

Revaluation of property transferred to investment properties 25,502 -
Relating to Group employee benefit schemes 1,095 {(469)
Derivaiive financial instruments 712) (40)
25,885 (509)
10  Dividends 2007 2006
€'000 €'000
Dividends paid
2007 interim dividend of 7.510 cent per ordinary share, paid on 20 April 2007 9,516 -
2006 final dividend of 6.780 cent per ordinary share, paid on 2 February 2007 8,573 -
2006 interim dividend of 6.710 cent per ordinary share, paid on 21 April 2008 - 8,441
2005 final dividend of 6.052 cent per ordinary share, paid on 3 February 2006 - 7.585
Total dividends paid to equity sharcholders 18,089 16,036
Proposed dividends

It is proposed that a finat dividend of 7.80 cent (2006: 6.780 cent} per ordinary share will be paid to ordinary shareholders after
the balance sheet date. These proposed dividends hava not been provided for in the Group balance sheet. The final dividend is
subject to approval by the Group’s shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.




Notes {continued)

1

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 July 2007 was based on the profit for the financial year
attributable to ordinary shareholders of €122,095,000 {2008: €98,798,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary

shares outstanding during the year of 126,505,312 (2006: 125,568, 177) calculated as follows:

2007 2006
€'000 €'000
Profit for financial year attributable to equity shareholders 122,995 98,798
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
) '000 "000
Issued ordinary shares at 1 August 126,188 124,905
Effect of shares issued during the year 317 663
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the year 126,505 125,568
Basic earnings per share 97.22 cent 78.68 cent
Diluted earnings per share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share at 31 July 2007 was based on diluted profit for the financial year attributable to
ordinary shareholders of €122,964,000 (2006: €98,798,000} and the weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted}
outstanding during the year ended 31 July 2007 of 128,040,000 (2006: 127,037,055} calculated as follows:
2007 2006
€'000 €'000
Profit for financial year attributabile to equity shareholders ' 122,995 98,798
Effect on minority interast share of profits due to dilutive effect of Origin equity entitlements (31) -
Diluted profit for financial year attributable to equity shareholders 122,964 98,798
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)
‘000 ‘000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in basic calculation 126,505 125,568
Effect of equity instruments with a dilutive effect 1,535 1,469
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted} for the year 128,040 127,037
Diluted eamings per share 96.04 cent 77.77 cent
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Notes (continued)

11 Earnings per share {continued)

Adjusted basic earnings per share 2007 2006

‘000 ‘000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic) at 31 July 126,505 125,568

2007 2007 2006 2006

€'000 Per share €'000 Per share

€ cent € cent

Profit for the financial year 122,995 97.22 98,798 78.68
Adjusiments:

Amortisation of intangible assets 15,927 12.59 7,100 5.65

Amartisation of related deferred tax liability (4,406) (3.48) {1,749) (1.39)

Exceptional items, net of tax {13,909) {10.99) {480} (0.39)

Adjusted basic earnings per share 120,607 95.34 103,659 82.55

Adjusted fully diluted eamings per share

2007 2006

‘000 ‘000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares {diluted} at 31 July 128,040 127,037

2007 2007 2006 2006

€000 Per share €'000 Per share

€ cent € cent

Dituted profit for financial year attributable to equity shareholders 122,964 96.04 98,798 77.77
Adjustments:

Amortisation of intangible assets 15,927 12.44 7,100 5.59

Amortisation of related deferred tax liability (4,408) (3.44) {1,749 (1.38)

Exceptional items, net of tax {13,909) (10.87) (490} {0.38)

Adjusted fully diluted earnings per share 120,576 94.17 103,659 81.60




Notes {continued)

12  Property, plant and equipment

31 July 2007 Assets
Land and Plant and Motor under
buildings  machinery vehicles construction Total

<€'000 €'000 €'000 €000 €000
Cost
Ai 1 August 2006 178,074 299,953 3,424 2,089 483,540
Additions 7,455 43,465 228 50,545 101,693
Arising on acquisition (Note 31} - 72,809 783 - 73,592
Disposals 4,102) (24,717} {1.026) - (29,845)
Transfers to investment properties (Note 13) (30,395 - - - {30.395)
Impairments - {23,038} - - (23,038}
Transtation adjustments (169} (2.621) (20) - {8,810)
At 31 July 2007 150,863 358,851 3,389 52,634 565,737
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 August 2006 29,834 142,810 2,508 - 175,152
Depreciation charge for year 4,282 28,566 603 - 33,451
Arising on acquisition (Note 31) - 52,959 526 - 53,485
Disposals {1,427) {21.213) (958) - {23,598
Transfers to investment properties (Note 13} {6,374} - - - (5.374)
Impairments - {20,831) - - {20,831)
Transiation adjustments (124) (2,897) {20) - (3.041)
At 31 July 2007 27,19 178,384 2,659 - 209,244
Net book amounts
At 31 July 2007 123,672 179,457 730 52,634 356,493
At 31 July 2006 148,240 157,143 916 2,089 308,388

Property, plant and equipment is stated at depreciated historic cost.
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Notes (continued)

12

Property, plant and equipment {continued)

31 July 2006

Cost

At 1 August 2005
Additions

Ajising on acquisition
Disposals

Translation adjustments

At 31 July 2006

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 August 2005
Depreciation charge for year
Disposals

Translation adjustments
At 31 July 2006

Net book amounts
At 31 July 2006

At 31 July 2005

Assets

Land and Piant and Motor under
buildings  machinery vehicles construction Total
€'000 €000 €'000 €'000 €000
180,718 261,653 5,046 447,417
1,261 49,835 407 2,089 53,692
622 12 - - 634
(4,506) 9,022) (2,040) {15,568}
21) (2,525) 1 - {2,535}
178,074 299,953 3,424 2,089 483,540
27617 128,436 3,788 159,839
4,203 22,889 539 . 27,631
1,931) (8.364) {1,829) (12,124}
{55) (151) 12 {194)
29,834 142,810 2,508 - 175,162
148,240 157,143 916 2,089 308,388
153,101 133,217 1,260 287,578




Notes (continued }

12

13

Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Assets held under finance leases

The net bock value in respect of assets held under finance leases and accordingly capitalised in property, plant and equipment
is as follows:

Piant and

Buildings  equipment Total

€'000 €000 €'000

At 31 July 2007 4,415 - 4,415

At 31 July 2006 5,001 141 5,142
Future purchase commitments at 31 July 2007 for property, plant and aquipment

2007 2006

€000 €'000

Contracted but not provided for in the financial statements 134,512 3,420

Authorised by the directors but not contracted for 24,925 3,200

Total 159,437 6,620

Investment properties 2007

€'000

Balance at beginning of financial year -

Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note 12} 25,021

Revaluation 140,129

Other 323

Balance at end of financial year 165,473

Investment properties, principally comprising land located in Ireland, are held for capital appreciation.

During the year, the Group conducted a review of its property portfolio, and transterred four sites with a carrying amount of
€25,021,000 to investment propertias. Tha Group determined that these proparties havae significant development potential
and are located in areas destined for future development and regeneration.

An independent valuations expert conducted a valuation of the properties, which valued them at €165 million, resulting in the
recognition of revaluation gains and deferred tax amounting to €140,129,000 and €25,502,000, respectively. The valuation was
on the basis of market value and complies with the requirements of the Valuation and Apgraisal Standards {the Red Book) issued
under the auspices of the Society of Chartered Surveyors, Market value represents the figure that would appear in a hypothetical
contract of sale between a willing buyer and a wiling seller in an arms length transaction.
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NOtes (continued)

Goodwill and intangible assets

31 July 2007 Intangible assets
Customer Computer
Goodwill related Brand related Total
€000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000

Cost
At 1 August 2006 258,735 26,585 48,229 18,150 351,699
Arising on acquisition (Note 31) 288,828 115,628 69,422 13,825 487,703
Additions - - 12,984 1,335 14,319
Disposals - - - {791) (791}
Cther {488) - - {460) (948)
Translation adjustments {15,735} {4.824) {2,897) {630) {24,086}
At 31 July 2007 531,340 137,389 127,738 31,429 827,896
Accumulated amartisation:
At 1 August 2006 - 3,629 5,759 8,287 17,675
Arising on acquisition (Note 31} - - - 11,625 11,625
Amortisation - 6,741 5,702 3,484 15,927
Disposals - - - {791) (791}
Other - - - {181} (181)
Translation adjustments - (189) (103) {548) (840}
At 31 July 2007 - 10,181 11,358 21,876 43,415
Net book amounts
At 31 July 2007 531,340 127,208 116,380 9,553 784,481
At 31 July 2006 258,735 22,956 42,470 9,863 334,024




Notes {continued)

14

Goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

31 July 2006 Intangible assets
Customer Computer
Goodwill related Brand related Total

€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Cost
At 1 August 2005 259,013 26,585 47,447 13,538 346,581
Arising on acquisition 1,862 - 1,862
Additions - - 782 4,694 5476
Disposals . - - - {48 48
Revision to deferred consideration 124 - 124
Translation adjustments {2,264) - - {32) {2.296)
At 31 July 2006 258,735 26,585 48,229 18,150 351,699
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 August 2005 - 1,414 2,623 6,516 10,553
Amortisation - 2,215 3,136 1,749 7,100
Disposals - - - (29 {29)
Translation adjustments - - - 51 51
At 31 July 2006 - 3,629 5,759 8,287 17,675
Net book amounts
At 31 July 2006 258,735 22,956 42,470 9,853 334,024
At 31 July 2005 259,013 25,171 44,824 7,020 336,028

The useful lives of all intangible assets are finite and range from 5 to 25 years depending on the nature of the asset.
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Notes (continucd)

14

Goodwil! and intangible assets (continued)
Impairment testing on goodwill

No impairment losses have been recognised in respect of the Group's cash generating units in the years ended 31 July 2007
and 2006,

The recoverable amounts of cash generating units are basaed on value in use calculations. Those calculations use cash flow
projections based on expected future operating results and cash fiows. The cash flow projections are based on current operating
results of the individual cash generating units and a conservative assumption regarding future organic growth. For the purposes
of the calculation of value in use, the cash flows are projected over a 5 year period with adgcitional cash flows in subsequent years
calculated using a terminal value methodology, unless a shorter period is appropriate to the circumstances of a particular cash
generating unit. The cash flows are discounted using appropriate risk adjusted discount rates averaging 8.12% {2006: 8.37%,),
reflecting the risk associatec with the individual future cash flows and the risk free rate. Included in investment in joint venturs ang
associates is goodwill with a carrying amount of €42,796,000 (2006; €44,657,000). This goodwill is subject to annual impairment
testing on a similar basis to the goodwill asising in the Group's subsidiaries. Any adverse change in the expected future
operational resulis and cash flows may result in the value in use being less that the camying value of a business unit and would
require that the camying valug of the business unit be impaired and stated at the greater of the value in use or the recoverable
amount of the business unit.

Key assumptions include management’s estimates of tuture profitability, replacement capital expenditure requirements, trade
wuorking capital investment needs and tax considerations. The term of the discounted cashflow model is a significant factor in
determining the fair value of the cash-generating units. The tenm has been arrived at taking account of the Group's strong financial
paosition, its established history of eamings growth and cash flow generation and its proven ability to pursue and integrate value
enhancing acquisitions.

The carrying amount of goodwill is made up primarity of goodwill attributed 1o cash generating units within the Food Europe
and Food North America businesses. Goodwill of €£89.8m has been allocated to Groupe Hubert, a cash generating unit within
the Food Europe business. Goodwill of €58m has been allocated to La Brea Bakeries and €288.4m has been allocated to Otis
Spunkmeyer Inc., both cash generating units within the Food North America business.
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15 .

Investments in associates and joint venture

31 July 2007

At 1 August 2006

Share of profits after tax

Dividends received

Gains/(losses) recognised directly through equity
Transtation adjustments

At 31 July 2007

31 July 2006

At 1 August 2006

Investments

Share of profits after tax

Dividends received

Gains recognised directly through equity
Translation adjustments

At 31 July 2006

Associates Joint venture
Share of net Share of net

assets Goodwill assets Goodwill Total
€000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
55,440 38,204 59,124 6,453 159,221
10,883 - 15,773 26,656
(1,759) - [16,241) {18,000)
5212 - (28) 5,184
{1,850} (1,833) {345) (28) {4,056)
67,926 36,371 58,283 6,425 169,005
36,062 14,282 59,406 6,257 116,087
10,513 24,548 35,061
10,860 - 14,793 25,653
(2,451) - (16.,667) - (19,118)
524 - - 524
{58) (626) 1,502 196 1,014
55,440 38,204 59,124 6,453 169,221

The amounts included in these financial statements in respect of the income and expenses of associates and joint venture are
taken from their latest financial statements prepared up to their respective year ends together with management accounts for
the intervening periods to the Group's year end. Hiestand Holding AG, included within associates, and the joint venture, Cillryan's

Bakery Limited, have year ends of 31 December.

The share price of Hiestand Holding AG, which is accounted for using the equity method of accounting, was €1,311 per share

at 31 July 2007.

2002 Wodey [enuuy oid 'dnoJY SMVI




1AWS Group, plc Annual Repart 2007

Y]

Notes icontinu e )

15 Investments in associates and joint venture (continued)
The investment in associates and joint venture (including goodwill is analysed as follows:

31 July 2007 Associates Joint venture Total
€'000 €'000 €'000
Non cumrent assets 97,240 49,904 147,144
Current assets 67,616 19,215 86,831
Non current liabilities (45,245) {3,760} {49.005)
Current liabilities {51,685} {7.076) {58,761}
Net assets 67,926 58,283 126,209
Goodwill 36,371 6,425 42,796
At 31 July 2007 104,297 64,708 169,005
37 July 2006 Associates Joint venture Total
€000 €'000 €000
Non current assets 46,555 48,471 95,026
Current assets 53,736 19,564 73,300
Non current liabilities (23,957) 4,701) (28.658)
Current liabilities (20,894) (4,210) (25,104)
Net assets 55,440 59,124 114,564
Goodwil 38,204 6,453 44 657
At 31 July 2006 93,644 65,577 159,221
16  Other investments 2007 2008
€'000 €'000
Balance at 1 August 203 242
Disposal - {4a)
Translation adjustment 1 1
Balance at 31 July 204 203




Notes (continucd)

17  inventory

Raw materials
Finished goods

Consumabfe stores

Total inventory at the lower of cost and net realisable value

18  Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Trade receivables due from associates
VAT recoverable

Other recetvables

2007 2006
€'000 €'000
37,433 12,035
96,543 73,020
3,670 3.484
137,646 88,539
2007 2006
€'000 €'000
181,144 160,767
1,420 1,149
8,485 5,451
49,402 38,811
240,451 206,178

A total expense of €1,365,000 (2006: €556,000) was recognised in the income statement arising from impairment of trade

receivables.

19  Trade and cther payables

Non current
Cther payables

Current

Trade payables

Trade payables due 10 associates and joint venture
Accruals and other payables

Income tax and social welfare

Value added tax

Non current payables are due entirely within five years.

2007 2006
€'000 €'000
350 345
171,723 158,280
1,351 975
203,099 133.073
3,387 3,080
3,505 3,152
383,065 299,570
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Notes (continued)

20 Provisions

Provisions comprise the net present value of the amounts expected to be payable in respect of deferred consideration.
Residual deferred consideration is due entirely within five years.

2007 2006
€000 €'000
Non current
Balance at 1 August 28,878 31,632 o
Arising on acquisition 15,537 - |
Discounting charge 1,338 744
' Reclassified to current - 7 (3481
5 Translation adjustment (664) (17}
" Balance at 31 July 45,089 28,878
: Current
Balance at 1 August 4,142 4,983 |
Payment of deferred consideration (3,571) (3,088} }
Revision to estimate in respect of previous transactions (571) {334) |
Reclassified from non current - 3,481
Balance at 31 July - 4142

21 Cash and cash equivalents

In accordance with IAS 7, Cash Flow Statements, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances held for the purposes of |
| meeting shart-term cash commitments and investments which are readily convertible to a known ameunt of cash and are subject
' o an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts are included within current interest bearing borowings in the Group

balance sheet.
| 2007 2006
€'000 €'000
Cash at bank and in hand 86,059 74,558
Bank overdrafts (Note 22) {37,555) (4,758)
Included in the Group cash flow statement 48,504 69,708

Cash at bank and in hand eams interest at floating rates based on daily deposit bank rates. Shart-term deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.
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Notes (continued)

22

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

The Group policy is to fix a substantial proportion of the Group's medium to long term exposure to interest rates. To achieve
this objective, the Group enters into interest rate swaps with a view 1o changing interest receivable or payable on the Group's
underlying cash and borrowings from variable to fixed rates. In addition, the Group has also issued fixed rate private debt.
The Group policy is to maintain between 40% and 70% of overall Group average annual borrowings at fixed rates of interest.

During the year, the Group completed a US$450 million Guaranteed Senior Note Private Placement {the “Notes”) with UK
and US institutions, The Notes have a weighted average tenor of 9.2 years and bear a fixed rate of interest of 5.82% which

is payable semi-annually.

Interest bearing lcans and borrowings were as follows at 31 July:

Bank lpans and overdrafts

Finance leases

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

Included in current fiabilities in the Group balance sheet
Bank overdrafts (Note 21)

Finance leases

Current interest bearing loans and borrowings

Non current interest bearing loans and borrowings

2007 2006
€000 €000
563,057 288,131
2,585 2,950
565,642 201,081
37,555 4,758
403 378
37,858 5,136
527,684 285,945

There is no significant difference between the book values and fair values of interest bearing loans and borrowings.

Guarantees

All Group borrowings are secured by guarantees from |IAWS Group, plc and cross guarantees from various companies within

the Group. The Group treats these guarantees as insurance contracts and accounts for them as such.
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Notes (continued)

22  Interest bearing loans and borrowings {continued) 2007 2006
€'000 €'000

Repayment schedule - loans and overdrafts
Within one year 37,555 4,758
Between one and two years 361 842
Between two and three years - -
Between three and four years - -
Between four and five years 196,889 282,531
After five years 328,252 -
Loans and overdrafts 563,057 288,131

Repayment schedule - finance leases .
Within one year 403 378

Between one and two years ' 399 376
Between two and three years 422 398
Between three and four years 446 421
Between four and five years 470 445
Adter five years 445 932
Finance leases 2,585 2,950
Borrowing facllities

Various borrowing facilities are avaflable to the Group. The undrawn committed facilities available as at 31 July 2007 and
31 July 2006, in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met, expire as follows:

Within one year - - -
Between one and two years - .
Between two and five years 699,964 152,469
After five years - -

699,964 152,469




Notes {continucd)

22  Interest bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

Currency profile of interest bearing loans and borrowings

All of the Group's interest bearing loans are bomowed by Group companies whose functional currency is gither eura or US dollar.
The carrying amounts of the Group's total interest bearing loans and borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

2007 2006

2'000 €000

Euro 114,758 87,306
Sterling 5,350 25,068
US dollar 328,498 94,697
CAD dollar 16,311 24,396
Swiss franc 100,725 59,615

565,642 291,081

The Group’s debt bears both floating and fixed rates of interest per the original contract. Certain floating rate debt has been
hedged into fixed rate debt through the use of interest rate swaps as identified below:

Impact of
Floating derivative Fixed
rate financial rate
debt instruments debt
€'000 €'000 €000
Hedged interest bearing liabilities denominated in:
Euro 50,000 {730) 49,270
CAD dollar - 16,311 (4} 16,307
66,311 (734) 65,577

Unhedged interest bearing fiabilities

Bank overdrafts 37,555
Finance leases 2,585
Fixed rate loans , . 328,252
Variable rate loans 130,939
Interest bearing liabilities 566,642
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23

Derivative and other flnancial instruments

Disclosures in accordance with IAS 32 and IAS 39

Risk exposures

The Group's international operations expose it to different financial risks that include foreign exchange rate risks, credit risks,
liquidity risks, commadity price risks and interest rate risks. The Group has a rsk management programme in place which
seeks to limit the impact of these risks on the financial performance of the Group. The Soard has determined the policies
for managing these risks, It is the poficy of the Board to manage these risks in a non-speculative marnner.

Foreign exchange risk

In addition to the Group's operations carried out in eurc-zone economies, it also has significant operations in the UK and
North America. As a result the Group balance sheet is exposed to currency fluctuations including, in particular, stering and
US dollar moverments. The Group manages its balance sheet having regard to the cumency exposures arising from its assets
being denominated in a wide range of currencies. To this end, where foreign currency assets are funded by borrowing,

such borrowing is generally sourced in the currency of the related assets. The Group also hedges a pertion of its cumency
exposure through the use of currency swaps, Transactional exposures arise from sales or purchases by an operating unit

in currencies other than the unit's functional currency. The Group requires all its operating units to use forward currency
contracts to eliminate the currency exposures on certain foreign currency purchases. The forward currency contracts

must be in the same currency as the hedged item.

Credit risk
The Group has detailed procedures for monitoring and managing the credit risk refated to its trade receivables.

nterest rate risk

The Group's debt bears both floating and fixed rates of interest per the original contracts. The Group's policy is to maintain
between 40% and 70% of overall Group average annual borrowings at fixed rates. This is achieved through the issuing of
fixed rate debt or the use of interest rate swaps.

Commodity price risk

The Group purchases and sells certain commadities for its own use and uses dervative contracts to protect itself from
mavements in price other than exchange differences.

Liquidity risk
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between flexibility and continuity of funding. The Group's policy is that not
mare than 40% of {otal bank borrowing facilities should mature in any proceeding twelve month period. 93% of the Group's
total borrowings at the year end will mature between two and twelve years.

Short-tarm flexibility 's achievad through the availability of overdraft facilities totalling €96m. The Group has syndicated loan
facilities totalling €950m as well as a US$450m private placement facility,



Notes (continucd)

23

Derivative and other financial instruments (continued)

Accounting for derivatives and hedging activities

The {air value of derivative financial assets and lizbilities at the balance sheet date is set out in the following table:

2007 2006
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
<€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Cash flow hedges
Currency forward contracts - 3,845 - 647
Interest rate swaps 734 - 1.532 -
Not designated as hedges - 100 - 100
At 31 July 2007 734 3,945 1,532 747
Cash flow hedges

Cash flow hedges are those of highly probable forecasted future income or expenses. In arder 10 qualify for hedge accounting,
the Group is required to document the relationship between the item being hedged and the hedging instrument and demonstrate,
at inception, that the hedge relationship will be highly effective on an ongoing basis. The hedge relationship must be tested for
effectiveness on subsequent reporting dates,

Not designated as hedges

In 2006 the Group entered into an agreement with the Co-Founder of Cuisine de France, Ronan McNamee, under which he has
been granted the option to take ownership of a Group subsidiary which currently owns {acilities and land at Tallaght. The option
cannot be exercised before the year ending 31 July 2009. If the option is exercised, the amount paid to acquire the subsidiary wilt
equate to €48 milion plus 50% of the increase in the market value of the land at the date of exercise. As at 31 July 2007, the fair
value of the option is not significantly different from its carrying amount.

Effective interest rates
In respect of interest bearing liabilities, the following table sets out the effective interest rates at 31 July:

2007 2006
Carrying Effective Carrying Effective
amount interest amount interest
€'000 rate % €'000 rate %
Interest bearing borrowings 525,502 5.16 283,373 3.85
Bank overdrafts 37,555 4.87 4,758 4.07
Finance lease liabilties 2,585 5.72 2,950 5.20
At 31 July 565,642 514 291,081 3.87

There are no significant differences between the book values and fair values of other financial assets or liabilities.
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25

Govemment grants

At 1 August
Translation adjustment

Released to Group income statement

At 31 July

Deferred tax

2007 2008
€'000 €'000
3,006 3,359
2 1
3,008 3,360
79 (354)

2,929 3,008

The deductible and taxable temporary differences at the balance sheet date in respect of which deferred tax has been recognised

are analysed as follows:

Deferred tax assets (deductible temporary differences)
Pension related

Financing related

Property, plant and equipment

Employee compensation

Other deductible temporary differences
Total

Deferred tax fiabilities (taxable temporary differences)
Pension related

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Intangible assets

Financing related

Other

Total

2007 2006
€'000 €000
1,811 1,844
3,156 878
323 569
2,405 2,815
5,994 2,568
14,689 8,474
(269) -
{31,049) (27,319)
{25,502) -
{90,155) {22,362)
. (128)

(66) (83}
{447,041) {49.902)




Notes (continued)

25  Deferred tax (continued)
Movement in temporary differences, during the year, were as follows:

2007 Property, Invest- Employee
plant & ment Intangible compen- Pension Financing
equipment properties assets sation related related Other Tota!

€000 £'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €000

At 1 August (26,750) (22,362) 2,815 1,844 550 2475  {41,428)
Recognised in Group
income statement {4,787) - 4,092 (2,405) 835 2,101 1,768 1,604
Recognised in Group
statement of recognised
income and expense - (25,502) - - {1,095) 7i2 {25,885)
Arising on acquisition (731} (74,361) 2,060 - - 2,756 {70,2786)
Foreign exchange and other 1,542 - 2,476 (65) (42) (207} {71) 3,633
At 31 July (30,726) {25,502) {90,155) 2,405 1,542 3,156 6,928 (132,352)
2006 Propenty, Employee
plant & Intangible compen- Pension Financing
equipment assets sation related related Other Total
€000 €'000 €'000 €'000 <'000 €'000 €000
At 1 August (27.464)  (23,451) 2,731 4,868 1,057 5503  (36.756)
Recognised in Group
income siatement 646 1,042 90 {2,545) (377) (3,017} {4,161}
Recognised in Group ’
statement of recognised
income and expense - - - (469) (129 - (598)
Foreign exchange and other 68 47 (6) {10} (1) (11} 87
At 31 July 26,750) (22,362) 2,815 1,844 550 2,475  (41,428)
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Retirerment benefit obligations

The Group operates a nurnber of pension schemes, comprising three defined benefit schermes and a number of defined
contribution schernes, with assets held in separate trustee-administered funds.

As at 31 July 2007, IAWS Group, ple is the principat employer of the main IAWS Group Defined Benefit Pension Schems (the
“Scheme"). A number of the Origin Enterprises plc {"Origin"} businesses participate in the Scheme. Following the formation of
Origin, a plan to restructure the Scheme was approved and was in the final steps of implermentation at year end. On cormpletion
of the plan, Crigin will replace JAWS Group, plc as principal employer, at which stage the scheme will only include active members
employed by Crigin and the current deferred members of the scheme. All non-Origin members will be transferred to a new
defined cantribution scheme. In addition, during the year, the Trustees purchased annvities for the Scheme's existing pensioners.
This extinguished the Group’s liability in the Scheme relating 0 those pensioners.

An amount of €16,145,000 has been recorded in the Group income statement within exceptional items in relation to the above
restructuring.

Under IAS 19, Employee Benefits, the total deficit in the Group's defined benefit schemes, including the main scheme, at 31 July
2007 was €6,459.000 (2006: €8,566,000). During the year, the Board approved the funding of the Group pension scheme deficit.

The pension cost expensed in the income statement for the year in respect of the Group’s defined benefit schemes was
€12,594,000 (2006: €1,796,000; and €2,684,000 (2005: €2,228,000) in respect of the Group’s defined contribution schemes.

Employee benefits inclucied in the Group balance sheet comprisas the following:

2007 2006

€000 €'000

Deficit in defined benefit schemes 6,459 6,566
Cther (a) 2,246 2,310
Total 8,705 8,876

(8 In 1989, a provision was mads to meet pension fund deficiencies in subsidiaries acquired, mostly relating to unfunded
pensions. The residual actuarial deficit of €2.2m is being paid over the remaining ifetime of the pensioners.
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Retirement benefit obligations {continued)

The valuations of the defined banefit schemes used for the purposes of the following disclosures are those of the most recent
actuarial valuations carried out from 1 March 2004 to 1 January 2006 and updated to 31 July 2007 by an independen:, qualified
actuary, The valuations have been performed using the projected unit method.

The main assumptions used by the actuary were as follows:

2007 2006
Rate of increase in salaries 4.01% 4.01%
Rate of increases in pensions in payment and deferred benefits 2.06% 2.06%
Discount rate in scheme liabiiities 5.50% 5.00%
inflation rate 2.06% 2.06%

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set based on advice from published statistics and experience. The average
life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65 is as follows:

2007 2006
Male 20.2 202
Female 23.2 232
The expected long term rate of return on the assets of the schemes were:

2007 2006
Equities 7.75% 7.30%
Bonds 4.40% 3.90%
Property 7.00% 6.70%
Cther 3.00% 3.00%
Net pensfon liability ' ) 2007 2006

€'000 €'000

Market value of scheme assets:
Equities 39,751 60,811
Bonds 3,354 19,039
Property 6,285 5,345
Other 279 4,132
Total market value of assets 49,669 80,327
Present value of scheme habilities {56,128) (85,893)
Deficit in the schemes (6,459) (8,566)
Related deferred tax asset 1,542 1,537
Net pension liability 4,97} {5.029)
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Retirement benefit obligations {continued)

Movement in the fair value of scheme assets

Fair value of assets at 1 August

Expected return on scheme assets
Employer contributions

Special employer contribution

Employee contributions

Transfers

Purchase of annuities

Benefit payments

Experience adjustment on scheme assets

Fair valug of assets at 31 July

Mavement in the present value of scheme obligations

Valus of scherne obligations at 1 August
Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest on schemes obligations

Employee contributions

Transfers

Benefit payments

Purchase of annuities

Settlement costs relating to the purchase of annuities
Experience adjustment on scheme liabilities
Effect of changes in actuarial assumptions

Value of scheme cbligations at 31 July

Movement in net liability recognised in the balance sheet

Net liability in schemes at 1 August

Current service cost

Past service cost

Contributions

Other finance income

Actuarial gain

Settlement costs relating 1o the purchase of annuities

Net liability in schemes at 31 July

2007 2006
€'000 €'000
89,327 67,878
5,561 4577
3,641 1,466
- 23,496
499 516
(580) 5.087)
(48,981} -
{4,789) 2.214)
4,991 (1.305)
49,669 89,327
2007 2006
€'000 €000
{95893)  (102.421)
(1,389) {2,091)
(401) -
{4,733) {4,282)
{499) {516)
580 5,087
4,789 2,214
48,981 -
{11,632) -
{538) {1,066}
4,607 7,182
{56,128) (95.893)
2007 2006
€000 €000
(6,566) (34.543)
(1,389) (2,001)
{401) -
3,641 24,962
828 205
9,060 4811
{11,632) .
(6,459) (6,566)
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Retirement benefit obligations {continued)

Analysis of defined benefit expense recognised in the Group income statement

Current service cost
Past service cost
Settlement costs relating to the purchase of annuities

Non financing expense recognised in Group income statement

Expected return on scheme assets
Interest cost on scheme fiabilities

Included in financing costs

Net charge to Group income staternent

Actual return on pension scheme assets

Defined benefit pension expense recognised in the Group statement of recognised income and expense

Actual return less expected return on scheme assets
Experience losses on scheme liabilities
Changes in demographic and financial assumptions

Actuarial gain
Deferred tax effect of actuarial gain

Actuarial gain recognised in statement of recognised income and expense

The cumulative gain recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense since the date of transition to IFRS

(1 August 2004) is €4,175,000.

2007 2006
€000 €000
1,389 2,091

401 .
11,632 -
13,422 2,091
{5,561) (4,577)
4733 4,282

(828) {205)
12,594 1,796
10,552 3,272

2007 2006
€'000 €000
4,991 {1,305)

(538) (1.066)
4,607 7,182
9,060 4,811
{1,095} (489)
7,965 4,342

1002 Vodey |enuuy oid ‘dnoig Sy

e
oy




IAWS Group, pic Annual Report 2007

e

Notes (continuad

26 Retirement benefit obligations (continued}
History of experience gains and losses: 2007 2006

Difference between expected and actual return on assets
- Amount {€°000) 4,91 {1,305)
- % of scheme assets 10.0% {1.5%)

Experience losses on scheme liabiiities
- Amount (€'000) (538) {1,068}

- % of scheme liabilities (1.0%) {1.1%)

Total actuarial gain recognised in statement of recagnised income and expense

- Amount (€000) 9,060 4,811
- % of scheme liabilities 18.1% 5.2%
27  Share capital 2007 2007 2006 2006
‘000 €'000 ‘000 €°000
Authorised

Ordinary shares of 30 cent gach (j) 228,000 68,400 228,000 68,400

8.5% cumulative redeemable convertibie preference shares
of €1.20 each (i) - - 15,000 18,000
Deferred convertible ordinary shares of 30 cent each (ii) 15,000 4,500 - -
Total 243,000 72,900 243,000 86,400

Ordinary shares of 30 cent each - Alfotted, called up and fully paid

At 1 August 126,188 37,856 124,905 37,471
Issued on exercise of options 77 215 1,283 385
Total 126,905 38,071 126,188 37,856

Deferred Corwvertible Ordinary Shares of 30 cent each
- Allctted, partially cafled and paid up

Issued during the year (i) 1,375 103 - -

{1 QOrdinary shareholders are entitled t¢ dividends as declared and each ordinary share carries equal voting rights at meetings
of the Company.,

(iy During the year, the 8.5% cumulative redeemable convertible preference shares of €1.20 each were cancelled.

(i} During the year, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased by the creation of 15,000,000 Deferred
Convertible Qrdinary Shares. The holders of the Deferred Convertible Ordinary Shares are not entitled to dividends
and have no voting rights at meetings of the Company.



Notes (continucd)

28

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

31 July 2007 Share- Foreign
Cash flow Re- based currency
Share hedge valuation payment Other translation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve  reserves reserve earnings Total

<€'000 €'000 <'000 €'000 €'000 €000 €000 €000

At 1 August 2006 51,899 735 - 3,067 3,198 (630) 381,701 439,970
(4,063)

1

Foreign exchange translation - - . - - (4,063)
Group and associate defined

bensfit pension schemes - - - - -
Deferred tax on Group defined

benefit pension schemes - - - - -

12,694 12,594

{1,095} (1,095)

Gains relating to Group and

associate cash flow hedges - (1,952} - - - - - (1,852}
Deferred tax relating to cash

flow hedges - 712 - - - - - 712
Revaluation of investment

properties - - 140,129 - . - - 140,129
Deferred tax relating to

revaluation of investment

properties - - {25,502) - - - - (25.502)
Profit for the period - - - - - - 123473 123473
Issue of ordinary shares 5102 - - - - - - 5,102
Share-based payments - - - BOO7 - - - 8,007
Dividends paid - - - - - - (18,089} (18,089}
Share of associates” other

reserve movermnents - - - - - 1,684 - 1,684

57,001 (505} 114,627 9,074 3,198 (3,000) 498,584 678,970

‘Changes in equity attributable

{0 minority interests (1.047)
Shareholders’ equity at .

31 July 2007 677,923
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Notes coninuad,;

28  Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity {(continued)

31 July 2006 Share- Foreign
Cash flow based currency
Share hedge payment Other translation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserves reserve eamings Total

€'000 €000 €000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €000

At 1 August 2005 43,745 - 1,517 3,198 (1,097) 294,597 341,860
Impact of adoption of IAS 32 and IAS 39 - 711 - - - - 711
Related deferred tax - {89} - - - - (89}
At 1 August 2005, adjusted 43,745 622 1,517 3,198 {1,097) 294,597 342,582
Foreign exchange transiation - - - - (57} - (57}
Group and associate defined

benefit pension schemes - - - - - 4,811 4,811
Deferred tax on Group defined

bensfit schemes - - - - - {469) {469}
Gains relating to Group and

associate cash flow hedges - 174 - - - - 174
Deferred tax relating to cash flow hedges - (40) - - - - {40}
Profit for the perod - - - - - 99,120 99,129
Issue of ordinary shares 8,154 - - - - - 8,154
Share-based payments - - 1,550 - - - 1,550
Dividends paid - - - - - {16,036) (16,036)
Share of associates’ other

reserve movements - - - - 524 - 524
At 31 July 2006 51,899 756 3,067 3,198 (630) 382,032 440,322

Changes in equity attributable

0 minority interests {352)
Sharehcolders' equity at 31 July 2006 439,970



Notes continuad)

28

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity {continued)

Other reserves

These reserves comprise €2,118,000 relating to a capital conversion reserve which arose on the renominalisation of the Group's
share capital following the introduction of the euro as well as €1,080,000 of other non-distributable reserves.

Share-based payment reserve

This reserve comprises amounts credited to reserves in connection with equity awards less the effect of any exercises of such
awards.

Cash flow hedge reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effactive porticn of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging
instruments related to hedged transactions that have not yet cccurred.

Foreign currency transiation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences from 1 August 2004, arising from the translation of the net
assets of the Group's non-euro denominated operations, including the translation of the profits of such cperations from the
average exchange rate for the year to the exchange rate at the balance sheet date, net of hedging.

Revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve relates o revaluation surpluses arising on revaluations of investment property.
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Notes (continuad)

29  Minority interest 2007 2006
€'000 €000
Balance at 1 August 2,910 3,924 .
Share of profit after tax for the year 478 331
Share of income recognised directly in equity 569 21
Arising on dilution of Crigin 47,043 -
Repurchase of minority interest {393} (1.366)
Other 24 .
Balance at 31 July 50,631 2,910

During the years ended 31 July 2007 and 20086, the Group repurchased a minority interest held in a subsidiary of the Food
Europe business.

30 Committents under operating leases

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as set out below. These amounts represant minimurn future lease payments,
in aggregate, that the Group is required to make under existing lease agreements.

2007 2006
€'000 €'000

Operating leases which expire:
Within one year 4,997 6,908
In two to five years 28,946 9,185
After more than five years 26,503 5,092
Balance at 31 July 60,446 21,185




A

Notes (continued)

Acquisitions

On 2 November 20086, the Group completed the acquisition of 100% of Otis Spunkmeyer Holdings, Inc. ("Ctis™), a leading

US specialty baked goods business.

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill arising from the business combination are as follows:

Acquiree’s
carmrying Fair value  Provisional
amount adjustments tair value
€'000 €'000 €'000

Net assets acquired:
Property, plant and equipment 20,860 [753) 20,107
Intangible assets 56,042 131,208 187,250
Inventory 27,886 647 28,533
Trade and other receivables 50,406 (543) 49,863
Trade and other payables (33,481) (10,108) (43,586)
Deferred tax (18,009) (52,267 (70.276)
Derivative liabilities (766) (766}
Corporation tax 1,047 {238} 808
Net assets acquired 171,934
Goodwill arising on acguisition 288,364
Consideration 460,298
Satisfied by:
Cash consideration, net 439,546
Bank overdraft acquired 2,903
Deferred purchase consideration 15,537
Accrued acquisition expenses 2312

460,298

Paost acquisition revenues and operating profit refating ta Otis Spunkmeyer amounted to €220,130,000 and €22,147,000,
respectively, Goodwill arising on the acquisition of Otis reflects the strategic positioning of the Group in North America.

The Group also acquired holdings in a Food Europe business previously held by third parties. The Group recorded goodwill

of €464,000 on the purchase of this minority interest.
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Notes icontinuod:

32 Contingent liabilities 2007 2006
€'000 €'000
(a) Government grants repayable if grant conditions are not met 3,910 3,910

(k) In order to avait of the exemption under Section 17 of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 1986 the Group has guaranteed the
liabilties of certain of its subsidiaries registerad in freland. Where the Group has entered into financial guarantee contracts
to guarantee the indebtedness of such subsidiaries, the Group considers these to be insurance contracts and accounts for
themn as such. The Group treats the guarantee contract as a contingent lability until such time as it becomes probabie that
that the Group will be required to make a payment under the guarantee.

{c) The Group and its subsidiaries have given composite guarantee and indemnity to secure obligations of fellow subsidiary
undertakings on all sums due: €1,047,000,000 in respect of bank loans, advances and overdrafts, $450,000,000 in respect
of the US dollar private placement and €20,000,000 in respect of guarantes and trade finance facilities, The Group considers
these to be insurance contracts and accounts for them as such.

33  Related party transactions
In the normal course of business, the Group undertakes arm’s length transactions with its associates, joint veniure and other
related parties. Included in sale of goods below are sales to associates of €71,164,000. A summary of transactions with these
related parties during the year are as follows:

2007 2006

€000 €'000

Sale of goods 72,517 70,969
Purchase of goods (7,894) (6.903)
Provision of services 325 596
Receiving of services {5,091) {5,013)

The trading balances owing to the Group from related parties were €3,845,000 (2006: €4,243,000} and the trading balances
owing from the Group to these related parties were €1,949,000 (2006: €7,768,000).

Compensation of key management personnel

For the purposes of the disclosure requirements of IAS 24, Related Farty Disclosures, the term "key management personnel”

{i.e. those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group) comprises
the Board of Directors, which manages the business and affairs of the Group. Full disclosure in relation to the f::ompensa:ion
entitlements of the Board of Directors is provided in the Report on directors’ remuneration on pages 27 to 33 of this Annual Report.



Notes (continued)

36

Subsequent events

On 30 August 2007, Origin Enterprises plc completed the acquisition of the 50% interest in the Odlum Group (“Odlums™) not
already awned for a consideration of €35m plus the assumption of related bank debt in Odlums of approximately €22m. Odlums
has been accounted for as an associate for the year ended 31 July 2007, The information required by paragraph 67 of IFRS 3,
Business Combinations, has not been disclosed in this annual report due to the proximity between the date of the completion of
the acquisition and the date of approval of the Group financial statements,

Significant subsidiaries
A list of all of the Group’s principal subsidiary undertakings as at 31 July 2007 is provided on pages 105 to 107 of this Annual
Report.

Approval of consolidated financial statements
These financial statements were approved by the Board on 24 September 2007.
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Company statement of accounting policies

for the year ended 31 July 2007

The following accounting policies have been applied
consistently in dealing with items which are considered material
in relation to the Company’s financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in euro and in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles under the
historical cost convention and comply with financial reporting
standards of the Accounting Standards Board, as promulgated
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland.

In accordance with the Companies Acts, 1963 to 2006 the
Company is permitted to take acdvantage of the exemption in
Section 148(8) of the Companies Act 1983 from presenting to its
members its Company profit and loss account and related notes
that form part of the approved Compary financial staterments.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and provisions for impairment.

Freehold land is not depreciated. The charge for depreciation is
calcutated to write down the cost of ather fixed assets including
leased assets to their estimated residual values by equal

instalments over their expected useful ives which are as follows:

Buildings 2510 50 years
Fixtures and fittings 3 to 15 years
Motor vehicles 3t 7.5 years

The carrying value of tangible assets is reviewed for impaimment
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the net book
amount may not be recoverable.

Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at open market value.
Changes in the value of the investment properties are shown
in the investment revafuation reserve through the statement
of total recognised gains and losses, unless the total of the
investment revaluation reserve is insutficient to cover a deficit,
in which case the amount by which the deficit exceeds the
amount in the investment revaluation reserve is charged in
the profit and loss account.

Investments in subsidiarfes

Investments in subsidiaries are shown at cost less provisions
for impairments in value. income from financial fixed assets is
recognised in the profit and loss account in the year in which
il is receivable.

Leased assets

Tangible fixed asseis acquired under finance leases are included
in the balance sheet at their equivalent capital value and are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives. The corresponding liabilities are recorded as a creditor
and the interest elemant of the finance lease rentals is charged
to the profit and loss account on an annuity basis. Operating
lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account on a
straight tine basis over the lease term.

Employee benefits

The Company makes pension contributions for a substantial
number of employees.

For the Company's defined benefit scheme, the difference
between the market vahse of the scheme's assets and the
actuarially assessed present value of the scheme’s liabilities,
calculated using the projected unit credit method, is disclosed
as an assel/liability in the balance sheet, net of deferred tax to
the extent that it is deemed to be recoverable.

The amount charged 10 operating profit is the actuarially
determined cost of pension benefits promised to employaes
and earned during the year plus the cost of any benefit
improvements granted 10 members during the year.

The expected return on the pension scheme's assets during
the year and the increase in the scheme's liabilties due to

the unwinding of the discount during the year are shown as
financing costs in the profit and loss account. Any difference
between the expected return on assets and that actually
achieved, and any changes in the Eabilities due to changes in
assumgptions or because actual experience during the year was
different to that assumed, are recognised as actuariat gains and
losses in the statement of total recognised gains and losses.

Taxation

Current tax is provided on the Company’s taxable profits, at
amounts expected to be paid using the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax Is recognised in respect of all timing differences
that have eriginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date,
as required by FRS 19, Deferred tax. Provision is made at the
rates expected to apply when the timing differences reverse.

A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and
therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all available
evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there
will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of
the underlying timing differences can be deducted.



Company statement of accounting policies worntinucd)

for the year ended 31 July 2007

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate nuling
at the date of the transactions or at a contracted rate. The
resulting monetary assets and hiabilities are translated at the
balance sheet rate or the contracted rate and the exchange
differances are dealt with in the profit and loss account,

Cash flow statement

Under the provisions of FRS 1, Cash Flow Statements, a

cash flow statemnent has not been prepared as the published
Group financial stataments, in which the Company's results are
conselidated, include a cash flow statement.

Related party transactions

Under the exemption granted by FRS 8, Refated Party
Disclosures, the Company, as a member of a group which
publishes Group financial statements in which the Company’s
results are consolidated, is not required to, and does not,
disclose transactions with fellow members, associates and joint
venture of that Group.

Dividends

Bividends are recognised in the period in which they are
approved by the Company’s shareholders and paid, or in the
case of an interim dividend, when it has been approved by the
Board of Directors and paid.

Share-based payment

The fair value of equity instruments granted under the
Company's 1897 Share Option Scherne and Long Term
Incentive Plan 2006 is recognised as an expense with a
coresponding increase in equity. The fair value is measured
at grant date and spread over the pericd during which the
employees become unconditionally entitled to the equity
instruments. The fair value of the equity instruments granted
is measured using an approved model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the equity Instruments
were granted. The scheme is subject 10 a non-market vesting
condition and, therefore, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjustad 10 reflect the actual number of equity instruments
that vest.
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Company balance sheet

as at 31 July 2007

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Investment properties

{investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Debtors

Cash at bank and on hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net curment assets

Net assets before post employment liabilities
Post ermployment liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital

Share premium

Profit and loss account and other reserves

Shareholders’ funds

Notes

2007 2006
€'000 €000
2,272 18,508

149,803 123,228

152,075 141,736

ar1,154 156,848
1,038 1

372,192 156,849

{35,159) 20.972)

337,033 135,877

489,108 277,613
(3,930) (2.247)

485,178 275,366

38,174 37,856
57,001 51,899
390,003 185,611
485,178 275,366




Notes to the Company balance sheet

for the year ended 31 July 2007

1

Tangible assets
Land and Fixtures
buildings  and fittings Tetal
€'000 €’000 €'000
Cost
At 1 August 2006 17,528 1,471 18,999
Additions - 786 786
Transfers 10 investment properties (16,751) - {16,751}
At 31 July 2007 777 2,257 3,034
Depreciation
At 1 August 2006 a3 408 491
Charge for year 16 255 271
At 31 July 2007 89 663 762
Net book amounts
At 31 July 2007 678 1,504 2,272
At 31 July 2006 17,445 1,063 18,508
Investment properties 2007
€'000
Balance at beginning of financial year .
Transfer from property, plant and equipment 16,751
Revaluation 52,749
Transfers to subsidiary {69,500}
Balance at end of financial year -

Investment properties, principally comprising land located in lreland, are held for capital appreciation.

During the year, the Company conducted a review of its property portfolio, and transferred sites with a carrying amount of
€16,751,000 to investment properties. The Company determined that these properties have significant development potential
and are located in areas destined for future development and regeneration.

An independent valuations expert conducted a valuation of the Company’s investment properties, which valued the properties
at €69.5m. The valuation was on the basis of market value and complies with the requirements of the Valuation and Appraisal
Standards (the Red Book) issued under the auspices of the Society of Chartered Surveyors. Market value represents the figure
that would appear in a hypothetical contract of sale between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction.

Subsequent to the revaluation, the company disposed of the properties to a fellow group company.
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Notes to the Company balance sheet ‘continued

Investments in subsidiaries €'000
At 1 August 2006 123,228
Additions 91,279
Transfers to fellow group companies (64.391)
Translation adjustments (313}
At 31 July 2007 149,803

During the year, as part of a group reorganisation, the Company increased its investments In subsidiaries by €26,575,000.

Debtors 2007 2006
€'000 €'000

Trade debtors - 32
Amounts owed by subsidiaries 363,151 150,946
Amounts owed by associates 28 28
Other debtors 7,975 5,842
a71,154 156,848

Amounts owed by subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

Craditors: amounts falling due within one year 2007 2006

€'000 €'000
Bank overdrafts 538 3,637
Trade creditors 3,425 1,303
Aceruals and other creditors 30,108 14,961
VAT payable 697 656
PAYE and PRSI jical 415

35,159 20,972




Notes to the Company balance sheet continued)

6 Post employment (fabilities

The Company operates defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes with assets held in separate trustee
administered funds.

As at 31 July 2007, |1AWS Group, ple is the principal emplover of the main IAWS Group Defined Benefit Pension Scheme (the
“Scheme™. A number of the Origin Enterprises plc {*Origin") businesses participate in the Scheme. Following the formation of
Origin, a plan to restructura the Scheme was approved and was in the final steps of implementation at year end. On completion
of the plan, Origin will reptace lAWS Group, plc as principal employer at which stage the scheme wilk only include active members
employed by Origin and the current deferred members of the scheme. The information in the remainder of this section has been
presented to reflect the position when Crigin takes over as principal employer.

Under FRS 17, Retirement benefits, the total deficit in the Company's defined benefit scheme at 31 July 2007 was €4,442,000
(2006: €2,568,000}. The pension cost expensed in the profit and loss account for the year in respect of the Company’s defined
benefit scheme was €11,599,000 (2006: €1,273,000).

The valuation of the defined benefit scheme used for the purposes of the following disclosures are those of the most recent
actuarial valuations carried out on 1 January 2006 and updated to 31 July 2007 by an independent, qualified actuary. The
valuations have been performed using the projected unit method.

The main assumptions used by the actuary were as follows: 2007 2006 2005
Rate of increase in salaries 4.01% 4.01% 4.01%
Rate of increases in pensions in payment and defemred benefits 2.06% 2.06% 2.06%
Discount rate in scheme liabilities 5.50% 5.00% 4.45%
Inflation rate 2.06% 2.06% 2.06%
The expected long term rate of return on the assets of the scheme was: 2007 2006 2005
Equities 7.75% 7.30% 6.72%
Bonds 4.40% 3.90% 3.29%
Property 7.00% 8.70% 4.75%
Other 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
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Post employment liabilities {continued)
Net pension lfability

Market value of scheme assets:
Equities
Bonds

Property
Other

Total market value of assets

Present value of scheme liabilities

Deficit in the scheme

Related deferred tax asset

Net pension liability

Movement in net liability recognised in the balance shest

Net liability in scheme at 1 August

Current service cost

Past service cost

Settlement costs relating 10 the purchase of annuities
Contributions

Other finance income

Actuarial gain

Qther

Net liability in scheme at 31 July

Notes to the Company balance sheet corinued;

2007 2006 2005
€'000 €000 €000
5,602 55,943 37,846

473 16,256 11,839
886 5.345 3.511
39 3,986 251
7,000 81,530 53,447

{11.442) {84,098) (83,529)

{8,442) (2.568) (30,082)
512 321 3,690

{3,930) {2,247) (26,392)
2007 2006

€000 €000

{2,568) {30,082)

(386) {1,725)

(401) -

(11,632) -

2477 24,476

820 452

1,988 5,582

5,260 (1.271)

{4,442) {2.568)




Notes to the Company palance sheet ceninued)

6 Post employment liabilities (continued)

Analysis of defined benefit expense recognised in the profit and loss account 2007 2006
€'000 €'000

Gurrent service cost 386 1,725
Past service cost 4M -
Settlement costs relating to the purchase of annuities ‘ 11,632 -
12,419 1,725

Expected return on scheme assets (3.410) {4,242)
Interest cost on scheme liabilities 2,590 3,790
Included in financing costs {820) {452)
Net charge to the profit and loss account ‘ 11,599 1,273

Defined benefit pension expense recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses

2007 2006

€'000 €'000

Actual return less expected return on scheme assets 1,758 (1,482)

Experience losses on scheme liabilities {770) (445}
Changes in demographic and financial assumptions 1,000 7,509
Actuarial gain 1,988 5,582
Deferred tax effect of actuarial gain (249) (698)
Actuarial gain recognised in statement of total recognised gains and losses 1,739 4.884
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Notes to the Company balance sheet coninued)

[ Post employment liabilities (continued)
History of experience gains and losses: 2007 2006 2005 2004

Difference between expected and actual retum on assets
- Amount (€"000) (3,758) 1,482 (4,904) (2.028)
- % of scheme assets (25.1%) 1.8% (9.2%s) (4.6%)

Experience losses on scheme liabilities
- Armount (€"000) 770 445 2,188 6,218

- % of scheme liabilities 6.7% 0.5% 2.6% 9.0%

Total actuarial (gain)floss recognised in staterment of total

recognised gains and josses
- Amount (€'000) {1,988) (5,582) 7,206 4,190
- % of scheme liabilties (17.4%) {6.6%) 8.6% 6.1%
7 Share capital 2007 2007 2006 2008
'000 €'000 ‘000 €000
Authorised
Qrdinary shares of 30 cent each {} 228,000 68,400 228,000 68,400
8.5% cumulative redeemable convertible preference
shares of €1,20 each (i) - - 15,000 18,000
Deferred convertible ordinary shares of 30 cent each (i) 15,000 4,500 - -
Total 243,000 72,900 243,000 86,400
Ordinary shares of 30 cent each — Alfotted, called up and fully paid
At 1 August 126,188 37,856 124,905 37471
Issued on exercise of options 717 215 1,283 385
Total 126,905 38,071 126,188 37.856
Defarred Convertibfe Ordinary Shares of 30 cent each
— Allotted, partially called and paid up
Issued during the year Gi) 1,375 103 - -

() Ordinary shareholders are entitfed o dividends as declared and each ordinary share carries equal voting rights at meetings
of the Company.

(it During the year, the 8,5% cumulative redeemable convertible preference shares of €1.20 each were cancelled.

(it During the year, the autherised share capital of the Company was increased by the creation of 15,000,000 Defemred
Convertible Qrdinary Shares. The holders of the Deferred Convertible Ordinary Shares are not entitled to dividends
and have no voting rights at meetings of the Company.
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11

Movement on reserves

Share-
based Re-
Share payment Other valuation Retained
premium reserve reserves reserve earnings Total

€'000 €'000 €000 €'000 €000 €'000

At 1 August 2006 51,899 3,067 2,118 - 180,426 237,510
Actuarial gain on post employment liabilities - - - - 1,988 1,988
Deterrad tax on actuarial gain on past employment

fiabilities - - . - (249) (249)
Revaluation of investment properties - o - 52,749 - 52,749
Deterred tax on revaluation of investment properties - - - (10,295} - {10,295)
Profit for the period attributable to equity holders - - - - 172,488 172,488
Issue of ordinary shares 5,102 - - - - 5,102
Share-based payments - 5,800 - - - 5,800
Dividends paid I . . - (18089 (18,089

At 31 July 2007 57,001 8,867 2,118 42,454 336,564 447,004

Financial guarantee contracts

In order to avail of the exemption under Section 17 of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 1986 the Company has guaranteed
the liabilities of certain of its subsidiaries registered in Ireland. Whera the Company has entered into financial guarantee contracts
to guarantee the indebtedness of such subsidiaries, the Company considers these to be insurance contracts and accounts for
them as such.

The Company is party 1o cross guarantees on Group borrowings. These are treated as insurance contracts and accounted
for as such.

Share-based payment

The Company grants equity instruments under the “1997 Share Option Scheme” and the “|AWS Long Term Incentive Plan 2006”.
All disclosures relating to the plan are made in Note 8 (a), (b} and (¢} to the Group financial staterments.

Dividends

The Company paid dividends during the year. All disclosures relating to dividends are made in Note 10 to the Group financial
statements.
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Notes to the Company balance sheet

12

13

14

Statutory and other information

Auditor’s remuneration for audit services
Profit for the financial year

Substantially ali the Group audit fee is recharged by the Company to its subsidiaries,

Employment

The average number of persons employed by the Company during the year was as follows:

Managerment and administration

Aggregate employment costs of the Company are analysed as follows:

Wages and salaries

Social welfare costs

Pension costs

- defined benefit schemes — statement of total recognised gains and losses
- defined benefit schemes - profit and loss account*

Share-based payment

fcontinued)

2007 2006
€'000 €'000
15 13
172,488 33,131
2007 2006

42 58

2007 2006
€'000 €'000
5,876 7,377
609 404
(1,988) (5,582)
11,599 1,273
5,800 899
21,896 4371

* Consists principally of settlement costs relating to the purchase of annuities for pensioners of the IAWS Group Defined Benefit

Pension Scheme

Approval of financial statements
These financial staternents were approved by the Board on 24 September 2007.



Principal subsidiary undertakings

At 31 July 2007 the Company had the following significant subsidiaries, associates and joint venture:

@

il

c

{d)

(e}

Name

Food subsidiaries - lreland

Cuisine de France Limited

IAWS Management Services Limited

tAWS Technology and Global Services Limited

Food subsidiaries ~ United Kingdorm

Cuisine de France {UK} Limited
Defice de France, pic

Food subsidiaries — Mainiand Europe
Groupe Hubert

Food subsidiaries — United States of Amenica
Cuisine de France, Inc.

La Brea Holdings, Inc.

Ctis Spunkmeyer, Inc.

Food associate and joint venture

Hiestand Holding AG
CiliRyan's Bakery Limited

Nature of business

Food manufacturing and distribution
Management
Research and development

Food distribution
Food manufacturing and distribution

Food distribution

Bread distribution
Bread manufacturing and food distribution
Baked goods manufacturing and distribution

Gourmet bakery
Bread manufacturing and distribution

Group %
share

100
100
100

100
100

100

100
100 D)
100

32
50

Reqgistered
office

11
17

{l The Group holds 97% of the common stock including 100% of the voting common stock of La Brea Bakery Holdings, Inc.
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Principal subsidiary undertakings icontinuedi

Name Nature of business . ' Group %  Registered
share office

@ Ongin subsidiaries — Ireland

Origin Enterprises plc Holding company 71.4 1
Goulding Chemicals Limited Fertiliser blending and distribution 100 1
R. & H. Hall Limited Grain and feed trading 100 i
Shamrock Foods Limited Food distribution 100 1
United Fish Industries Limited Fish processing . 100 1

fg)  Origin subsidiaries — United Kingdom

Hall Silos Limited Grain handling 100 5
IAWS Fertilisers (UK) Limited Fertiliser blending and distribution 100 2
IAWS UK Holdings Limited Hoelding company 100 6
SFP {Shetland Fish Products) Limited Fish processing 50 (i) 7
United Fish Industries (UK) Limited Fish processing 100 13
fh}  Origin associates
John Thompson and Sons Limited Provender millers 50 4
North West Silos Limited Feed processing 50 14
Odlum Group Flour milling 50 15
West Twin Silos Limited Silo operation 50 5

(i} SFP {Shetland Fish Products) Limited is consolidated on the basts of the Group having the power to control the financial and
operating policies of this undertaking.



Principal subsidiary undertakings (continued)

Registered offices
1. 151 Thomas Street, Dublin 8, Ireland.

2. Orchard Road, Royston, Hertfordshire $SG8 SHW, England.

3. Belgard Square, Tallaght, Dubilin 24, Ireland.

4, 35/39 York Road, Belfast BT15 3GW, Northern Irefand.

5. Arnott House, 12-16 Bridge Street, Belfast BT1 1LS, Northern Ireland.

6. Unit 4a, Mckean Road, Campsie Real Estate, Londonderry, BT47 3PF, Northern Ireland.

7. Greenwell Place, Aberdeen AB12 3AY, Scotland.

8. Unit 4, Blaris Industrial Estate, Old Hillsborough Road, Lisburn, Co. Antrim, BT 27 5QB, Northern Ireland.
9. Boulevard de Beaubourg, B.P. 22 - Emerainville, 77313 Marne-La-Vallee, Cedex 2, France,

10. 203 North La Salle Street, Suite 1800, Park Ridge, Chicago, lllinois 60601, United States of America.

11. 2711 Cenfervile Road, Suite 400, Wilmington, Delaware 19808, United States of America.
i2.  Rubastic Road, Southhall, Middlesex UB2 5LL, England.

13. Glbey Road, Grimsby, South Humberside DN31 25L, England.

14.  Clarendon House, 23 Clarendon Road, Belfast BT1 3BG, Northern Ireland.

15,  Alexandra Road, Dubtin 1, Ireland. '

16. Ifangstrasse 9-11 / PO. Box, CH-8952 Schiieren-Zurich, Switzerand.

17. 14490 Catalina Street, San Leandro, CA94577, USA.
The country of registration is also the principal location of activities in each case.

A full list of subsidiaries, associates and joint venture wilt be fllad with the relevant Registrar of Companies.
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Directors and other information

Directors

Secretary

Registered office

Syndicate bankers

D. Lucey = Chairman

Q. Killian = Chief Executive Officer
P. McEniff — Chief Financial Officer
H. Kane - Executive

T. ©'Mahony - Executive

D. Buckley

B. Dardis

J. B. Davy

N. Hynes

P. Lynch Auditor
D. Martin

W. G. Murphy

P. N, Wilkinson

Registrars

Stockbrokers

P. Morrissey

151 Thomas Street
Dubiin 8

ABN AMRQ Bank NV
ABN AMRO House
IFSC

Dublin 1

Bank of America, N.A.
5 Canada Square
London E14 5AQ

Bank of Ireland
Lower Baggot Street
Dublin 2

Barclays Bank Ireland plc
47/48 St Stephens Green
Dublin 2

BNP Paribas

5 George's Dock
IFSC

Dublin 1

IIB Bank ple
Sandwith Street
Dublin 2

Ulster Bark Group
George's Quay
Dublin 2

Capita Corporate Registrars Plc
Unit 3

Manor Street Business Park
Dublin 7

Davy
49 Dawson Street
Dublin 2

KPMG

Chartered Accountants
1 Stokes Place

St. Stephen’s Green
Dublin 2
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